OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date: Thursday 30 January 2020
Time: 7.00 pm
Venue:

Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor Danial Adilypour (Vice-Chair), Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor
Mary Atkins (Vice-Chair), Councillor Jonathan Bartley, Councillor Maria Kay, Councillor Stephen Donnelly,
Councillor Joshua Lindsey and Councillor Lucy Caldicott
Co-opted Members
Lynette Murphy-O’Dwyer (Statutory Education Co-optee)
Frank Roberts (Statutory Education Co-optee)
Simon Funnell (Parent Governor Co-optee)
Baboucarr Jallow (Parent Governor Co-optee)
Substitute Members
Councillor Marcia Cameron, Councillor Dr. Mahamed Hashi, Councillor Marianna Masters and Councillor
Scarlett O'Hara
Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Gary O’Key, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Telephone: 020 7926 2183; Email:
gokey@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and the venue is fully accessible. If you have
any specific needs please contact Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 – or the number on the front
page.
Map

Travel Information
Buses
196, 2, and 3 from Herne Hill/Peckham and Crystal Palace direction stop outside the civic centre.
118, 333, 45, 133, 59, 159 from Streatham direction and stop outside the Town Hall.
37 and 35 stops outside the Assembly Hall on Acre Lane.
Tube Station
Brixton Underground and Overground Stations are a 7 minute walk way.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

1.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

Page
Nos.
1 - 10

To agree the minutes of the meeting of 13 November 2019 as an accurate
record of the meeting.

2.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4))
in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee,
sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from the meeting
room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been
obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

3.

2019 Safer Lambeth Partnership Scrutiny Report

11 - 74

Contact for Information: Kristian Aspinall, Assistant Director, Community
Safety; 020 7926 2429, KAspinall@lambeth.gov.uk

4.

2019-20 Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
Contact for Information: Gary O’Key, Senior Democratic Services Officer;
020 7926 2183, gokey@lambeth.gov.uk

75 - 106

Page 1

Agenda Item 1

O&SC
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Wednesday 13 November 2019 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor Danial Adilypour (Vice-Chair),
Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor Mary Atkins (Vice-Chair),
Councillor Stephen Donnelly, Councillor Joshua Lindsey and
Councillor Pete Elliott

APOLOGIES:

Councillor Jonathan Bartley, Councillor Maria Kay and Councillor
Lucy Caldicott

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillor Matthew Bennett, Councillor Jacqui Dyer, Councillor Sonia
Winifred and Councillor Nigel Haselden

Action
required by
1.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Councillor Liz Atkins, Chair, welcomed everyone to the meeting and all
present introduced themselves.
Apologies for absence were noted.
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 2019 be
approved subject to an amendment received by Councillor Jonathan Bartley
regarding the housing contract options appraisal.

2.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
There were no declarations of pecuniary interest.

3.

FINANCIAL PLANNING REPORT 2019/20 TO 2023/24
Christina Thompson, Director of Finance and Property, introduced the report
and stated that:


The purpose of the report was to update the medium term financial
strategy, setting out the local government funding situation and the
Council’s spending and budget monitoring



This was a period of uncertainty for local government finance, with the

Page 2
latest funding settlement from central government being a one-off


Grant funding was continuing and in some cases expanding, such as
the new social care grant. However, demand pressures were also
increasing



The overspend related mostly to Children’s Services. It was noted that
the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee met the previous
evening to consider the budget in that area, among other issues

The Chair explained that the committee had asked the Trade Unions and
People’s Audit for contributions, and a written submission had been received
from People’s Audit raising three issues. Addressing these, the Director of
Finance and Property said that:


The work to identify savings to fill the funding gap, which this year
stood at roughly £6m, was carried out with the support of Finance, and
detailed proposals were tested and agreed by Cabinet Members
before being signed off



In relation to the unspecified £1m lump sum in Appendix 1 for income
generation activities, work was starting now to identify opportunities
for four years hence. There had been previous scrutiny from members
on this which would no doubt continue



It was correct that there had been slippage in the capital programme.
Work was being done to look at ways of improving the monitoring of
the programme including setting out a yearly profiled spend



It was not possible to provide the five year CIPFA code breakdown of
the budget in the way described due to changes in the number and
make-up of Council directorates over that period



It was accepted that it was good practice to include more comparative
data; while some services did this it was not currently done on a whole
council basis

In response to questions from Members, Christina Thompson, Director of
Finance and Property; Fiona McDermott, Strategic Director for Finance and
Investment; Andrew Eyres, Strategic Director for Integrated Health and Adult
Care; Sara Waller, Co-Strategic Director for Sustainable Growth and
Opportunity; and Fiona Connolly, Executive Director for Adult Social Care
stated that:


The London business rates pilot pool was running for a second year.
Last year 100% of annual growth was pooled and distributed as
agreed by the authorities involved, yielding benefits over and above
what the Revenue Support Grant would have been. The advantages
which accrued from the business rates pilot were being treated as
one-offs rather than being set into the base budget. London Councils
had estimated that the Council would gain around £700k from next
year’s pooling arrangement. The future 75% retention would not
necessarily be a pool and would be shared with the Greater London
Authority (GLA) on a 75/25 basis



A revaluation of business rates was expected next year. This was a
national government decision over which local authorities had no

Page 3
control but was likely to impact on growth. The Council had certain
discretionary powers to lower business rates in some cases


Modelling had been carried out regarding the possibility of introducing
a voluntary contribution from residents. There were a number of
options regarding how such a fund would operate and what value it
could bring which were being evaluated. The target was to launch
such a scheme in the new financial year



Assumptions had been made regarding the continuation of certain
grants such as the Better Care Fund and Adult Social Care Grant and
Lambeth was planning on a similar basis to other authorities.
However, an ageing population with increasingly complex needs
meant it was necessary to deliver better value for money in the care
system. Assurance had been undertaken in this regard



Under the Lambeth Together integration, the Council and partners
were moving towards a neighbourhood model which would localise
care and build resilient support



The ongoing work to meet the Council’s climate change ambitions had
been costed and managed within the budget presented. There would
be a further report to Cabinet in July 2020 on the climate emergency
which would be fully costed and baselined and the Citizens’ Assembly
was planned for the early part of next year. The work being done to
establish the emissions baseline would allow the Council to better
understand the financial implications



It was important to recognise that capital expenditure was already
being directed at climate change issues, such as energy reduction and
cycle lanes



A piece of work was done in 2016 looking at income streams and how
these compared with other authorities. As a result, a number of
charges were uplifted and additional discretionary charges were
introduced. Benchmarking work was ongoing and it was anticipated
that fees and charges would increase in line with inflation and
statutory obligations. The current target for fees and charges was
£58.5m and this was forecast to be exceeded by £3.7m. This meant
there was confidence future income targets would be met



Impact analysis was carried out when proposals to increase fees and
charges were brought forward. The recent decision around adult
social care fees and charges had been assessed by the Corporate
Equalities Impact Assessment Panel who were assured by the
mitigations being put in place



Right to buy receipts were capital so could not be applied to the
revenue budget. Some receipts were recycled through the GLA but
still utilised



The interest rate charged by the Public Works Loan Board had
recently increased by 1%. This would affect new borrowing only but
would have an impact on the capital programme and the way in which
it was funded. Work was being done with Cabinet Members to
prioritise the capital programme. The funding available was forecast to
support £70m borrowing over the next four years but may need to

Page 4
drop by around £10m due to the rate increase
RESOLVED:
1. That budget and expenditure comparisons with other councils in
Lambeth’s CIPFA comparator group should be routinely included in
future budget reports
2. To request further information on the London business rates pooling
arrangements for 2020/21 with a particular focus on expected benefits
or drawbacks for Lambeth
3. To request details of the forthcoming business rates revaluation and
its effects for Lambeth, including expected mitigation, as soon as this
information becomes available
4. That all future budget reports should include a detailed analysis of the
financial implications of the Council’s climate emergency response
5. That further detail be provided to the committee regarding the
modelling work that has been done to assess options for the
introduction of a voluntary contribution from residents. This should
include information on forecast value, costs and governance
arrangements as well as maintenance and distribution of the funds
6. That the committee continues to be concerned at the pressures on
adult social care and the potential effects of increased fees and
charges on service users, and requests a future update on the extent
to which the service is delivering positive outcomes and value for
money in the face of these pressures
7. That further details regarding the impact of the 1% increase in the
Public Works Loan Board interest rate on the Council’s capital
programme be provided to the committee
8. That the committee notes the reliance on income generation to meet
the bulk of the savings set out and wishes to receive future updates on
how these proposals are progressing against the stated targets
4.

DRAFT SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND INCLUSIVE OPPORTUNITY
STRATEGY
Councillor Matthew Bennett, Cabinet Member for Planning, Investment and
New Homes, introduced the report and stated that:


It was helpful to consider this strategy following the finance report as it
linked strongly into the Council’s future budget, which was becoming
increasingly reliant on revenue and income generation – principally
council tax and business rates – to fund core services. This meant
decisions regarding attracting growth and investment would set a
baseline for the future



The strategy presented in the papers looked across the Council as a
whole to consider what growth is and how to bring it about. It was an
early draft and scrutiny members’ views would assist in shaping the
work. A final version was likely to go to Cabinet in the spring



One of the aims of the strategy was to make sure the Council provided

Page 5
the right skills and training to the right people to help match skills to
employment opportunities while also addressing some of the
disparities experienced by certain communities, such as BAME and
disabled residents


A draft action plan was presented via which the administration could
be held to account



It had to be acknowledged that this was a shared endeavour with
partners

In response to questions from Members, Councillor Matthew Bennett, Cabinet
Member for Planning, Investment and New Homes; Councillor Jacqui Dyer,
Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety (Job Share); and
Sara Waller, Co-Strategic Director for Sustainable Growth and Opportunity,
stated that:


The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was a tax on development
which was charged per square metre. The borough was split into
zones with a different charging schedule in each area. While this had
previously been thought of in terms of offsetting the effects of
development in the area concerned, it was now considered a broader
source of funding to address need in the borough more generally. It
was felt that there were opportunities to help address environmental
and public realm issues via CIL using a criteria-based system of
prioritisation



It was agreed that there needed to be improved communications
regarding CIL, setting out clearly and transparently how it was
calculated and allocated



While the Council did not have a dedicated small business strategy
aimed at those businesses that were not part of wider networks for
whatever reason, there was support offered. This included services
provided via local libraries and affordable workspace schemes such
as GLOWS in Tulse Hill. It was also important to support small
businesses to grow and become medium sized enterprises



More needed to be invested in addressing equalities issues with
regards to business, education and employment



Inner Circle had helped kick start this work when extra capacity was
required as departmental restructures took place within the Council,
while 31ten had assisted in modelling the amount of infrastructure
needed to complement the growth happening in the borough



Disparities existed for certain groups due to structural inequalities that
had persisted for decades. The strategy aimed to pay particular
attention to how these could be overcome; this was partly about using
data and monitoring (including comparative statistics) but also
leadership and promoting equality legislation



Environmental impact assessments were carried out in relation to
particular projects and were also a requirement of the planning system
but no overall assessment had been done in the context of the
strategy. It was acknowledged that there were tensions between
enabling growth and tackling climate change but there were also

Page 6
opportunities since addressing the climate emergency was potentially
a huge source of employment


Data formed a vital part of the evidence base but the importance of
input from residents, businesses and ward councillors in shaping the
strategy was also acknowledged



Affordable housing in the context of this strategy referred to social rent



In terms of employment and skills, it was important to understand
residents who were furthest from the labour market while also
considering how others had become successful



It was accepted that it was challenging for people living on estates that
were undergoing regeneration but the Council was working
continuously to make improvements, such as the introduction of
focused estate managers which had been well received

Guillotine
During the discussion of this item the guillotine fell at 9.00pm.
MOVED by the Chair and
RESOLVED: That the meeting continue for a further period of up to 30
minutes.
RESOLVED:
1. That greater transparency and more effective communication is
required regarding the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
2. That a clear set of criteria is needed regarding how CIL is allocated,
with a particular focus on addressing identified need across the
borough rather than just in the area(s) in which development takes
place
3. That more consultation with residents, businesses and ward
councillors is required to develop the strategy, with measurable
targets and outcomes developed with stakeholders
4. That terms such as “affordable housing” need to be clearly defined in
the strategy and all public documents
5. That thorough environmental impact assessments be carried out for
all individual development projects and decisions made, particularly in
relation to how they will impact the Council’s response to the
declaration of a climate emergency, and that this be referenced in the
strategy
6. That comparative data be referenced in the strategy wherever
possible. This should include national employment figures and data on
the economically inactive
7. That the strategy should have a clearer focus on addressing
disparities experienced by the borough’s BME, Portuguese, disabled
and economically inactive communities
8. That there needs to be a more coherent strategy aimed at supporting

Page 7
small businesses, particularly those who are not part of Business
Improvement Districts (e.g. because of geography). This should
include identifying priority needs and best practice, and disseminating
the latter across the borough
9. That lessons learned reports be compiled for all major projects and
that identified lessons be applied to future schemes
5.

EVENTS SCRUTINY COMMISSION: DRAFT REPORT
Councillor Mary Atkins, Overview & Scrutiny Vice Chair and Chair of the
Events Scrutiny Commission, introduced the item by stating that:


The report was a result of a great deal of work by four councillors over
a number of months



The commission came about as a result of debate over the use of
public parks and open spaces for commercial events, not just in
Lambeth but also more widely. It was felt that local councillors had a
vital role to play in balancing competing interests and ensuring that
commercial activity in public spaces delivered maximum benefits, not
just to the Council but to the community more widely



The commission considered a great deal of detailed research and best
practice to arrive at its findings and recommendations, which were
presented for consideration by the committee



She believed it was a very good report and hoped Members would
endorse it



She thanked the Senior Democratic Services Officer for his work in
supporting the commission

Councillor Nigel Haselden, Commission Member, added that:


He was pleased to be given the opportunity to be part of the
commission



The four members of the commission reflected a range of
geographical areas, backgrounds and perspectives and worked well
together



He hoped the report would help shape policy in this area



It was important to deliver high quality cultural events while
maximising benefits



He expressed gratitude to the Senior Democratic Services Officer for
capturing and shaping the arguments and findings



The stakeholder consultation event referred to in the report played an
important role in influencing the recommendations

Members discussed the report and made the following points:


It was good to see reference made to the climate emergency and
minimising environmental impacts



It was queried whether part of the income for events could be ring

Page 8
fenced for accessibility improvements to parks and open spaces


It was asked what steps were taken to engage with young people who
might attend the types of events referred to. Councillor Mary Atkins
responded that a number of young people had been invited to the
stakeholder event and input had been sought from the Young
Lambeth Cooperative. While only one young person had attended the
consultation, their comments were very valuable and were augmented
by other related contributions – for example, from councillors reflecting
back the views of young people in their areas, and by a venue owner
who catered for many event goers



It was suggested that the impact of certain recommendations –
particularly numbers 1, 3 and 5 – could be strengthened and made
more lasting by changing the wording to state that the Council “must”
carry out the suggested action, rather than “should”

In response to the report, Councillor Sonia Winifred, Cabinet Member for
Equalities and Culture, and Kevin Crook, Assistant Director, Neighbourhoods,
stated that:
 Lambeth was well versed in delivering events which reflected the
borough’s communities


The programme of events was not just the work of the Council but was
a joint effort with volunteers and community groups



Parks and open spaces played an important role in promoting health
and wellbeing



The 2016 Events Strategy was being reviewed and a refreshed
version was due to be produced next year to cover the period 202025. A Green Events Guide had also been produced



Whilst the recommendations were generally welcomed, there were
minor concerns over the feasibility of a small number of them – for
example, the cost implications of impact statements (recommendation
5). It was noted that full responses, including timescales and resource
implications, would be set out in an action plan when the report was
taken to Cabinet



An accessibility analysis of all park facilities had been commissioned

RESOLVED:
1. To approve the report for presentation to Cabinet subject to
consideration of the following comments:

6.

-

The potential for ring-fencing funds for accessibility improvements
to parks and open spaces

-

The possibility of strengthening recommendations 1 and 3 to say
“must” rather than “should”

2019-20 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
It was noted that the 30 January meeting would be the annual scrutiny of the
Safer Lambeth Partnership with additional items on the redevelopment of
Lambeth Hospital and the Digital Accessibility Scrutiny Commission. The
Chair explained that the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee would

Page 9
be taking the lead on scrutinising the Serious Youth Violence strategy at its
meeting on 23 January and efforts would be made to coordinate the work of
the two committees to ensure a joined-up approach to crime and disorder
scrutiny.
The Chair also expressed concern at the number of people killed and
seriously injured on Lambeth’s roads and suggested that a briefing note be
requested from officers to gauge what the issues were and what was being
done to tackle them before deciding whether further, more formal scrutiny
was warranted.
RESOLVED:
1. That the work programme as drafted and status of actions be noted
2. That a briefing note be requested from officers on the number of
people killed and seriously injured (KSI) on Lambeth’s roads, with data
including KSI levels, trends and benchmarking with other boroughs,
and what is being done (or is planned) to tackle this

The meeting ended at 9.25 pm
CHAIR
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 30 January 2020
Date of Despatch: Thursday 21 November 2019
Contact for Enquiries: Gary O’Key
Tel: 020 7926 2183
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: gokey@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk
The action column is for officers' use only and does not form a part of the formal record.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

Agenda Item 3

OFFICIAL

Overview & Scrutiny Committee: 30 JANUARY 2020
Report title: 2019 Safer Lambeth Partnership Scrutiny Report
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety (Job Share): Councillor
Mohammed Seedat
Report Authorised by: Annie Hudson: Strategic Director for Children’s Services
Contact for enquiries: Kristian Aspinall, Assistant Director, Community Safety; 0207 926 2429,
KAspinall@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report has been developed in response to the Overview and Scrutiny request for the statutory crime
and disorder annual scrutiny meeting in January 2020.
It contains an overview of the Safer Lambeth Partnership, at both the strategic and operational level. It
outlines our performance against key indicators across the last 12 months, and then a detailed outline of
key priority areas and the outcomes achieved this year for those areas:




Counter terrorism (Prevent)
Violence against women and girls
Anti-social behaviour

In addition, an appendix has been provided giving detailed breakdowns of:




Ward level data for common crime types
Prevent training feedback from Education
An update on the actions from the November 2018 recommendations

Finance summary
There are no capital or revenue implications as a direct result of this report.

Recommendations
To note the report.

Reasons for Exemption from disclosure
There are no reasons for exemption from disclosure for this report.

Page 12
OFFICIAL

Page 13
OFFICIAL

Introduction


This report contains a wide summary of information about the activity and results of the
Safer Lambeth Partnership over the last year. As the partnership represents multiple
organisations and is tackling many varied crime types, it is a broad overview of all
aspects of the work and touches on numerous areas.



The report gives a breakdown of the statutory structure of the partnership through the
Executive and the sub-groups that deliver against the key priorities.



It then outlines the organisational shape and changes of four of the main statutory
partners – Council, Police, Health and Fire Brigade. Based on feedback from previous
years the Police have provided an extensive overview of the new Borough Command
Operational model and how it is delivered in Lambeth in particular.



Section 3 outlines the top-level crime results in Lambeth. The overall levels of crime
have remained roughly the same over the last twelve months, but there have been
changes within that crime profile that are highlighted here. Most significantly, we have
seen a substantial fall in the overall levels of violence against young people but an
increase in the levels of harm caused. Whilst less violence is happening overall, the
violence that is happening tends to be more severe and have greater impact on victims
and their communities.



The three main priorities of the partnership (Tackling violence against young people,
tackling violence against women and girls, and Counter terrorism) are detailed in the
next section. Reducing violence against young people, under the new Lambeth Made
Safer strategy, has been our largest piece of work this year and a short summary is
provided here although the main detail is outlined in the report to Children’s Services
Scrutiny on January 23rd 2020.



Finally, a detailed overview of the partnerships work to tackle anti-social behaviour is
contained at the end, highlighting significant work that has taken place over the last
year including the council’s new noise service, the launch of Local Authority funded
police officers, details on our CCTV systems, activity to combat knife sales to young
people, work to support Lambeth’s most vulnerable victims of anti-social behaviour and
performance of our housing service anti-social behaviour work for social housing
tenants specifically.

Page 14
OFFICIAL

1
1.1

Strategic Context – The Safer Lambeth Partnership
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the Police and Justice Act 2007 introduced a new
statutory framework for the work of Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs). The Safer
Lambeth Partnership is the Lambeth CSP. The legislation created three interlinked
statutory duties on local authorities and their partners:




to create a 'strategic' group to lead the Partnership consisting of five ‘responsible'
authorities;
to undertake an annual 'Strategic Assessment' of quantitative and qualitative
impact of crime, disorder, substance misuse and offending in the area;
on the basis of this, to agree and publish a set of priorities for reducing crime,
disorder, substance misuse and offending in the area, embodied in a 'Partnership
Plan' with aims, objectives and targets.

1.2

The five statutory partners for the partnership are the council, the police, probation, the
local clinical commissioning group and the fire brigade.

1.3

The Safer Lambeth Partnership is co-chaired by the Chief Executive of Lambeth Council
and the Borough Commander of Lambeth Metropolitan Police Service. As well as the
statutory partners it includes co-opted councillors and representatives from the third
sector. The Partnership is a formally constituted body.

1.4

In 2019 the decision was taken to refresh the Executive meeting and structure. Whilst the
partnership had delivered significant improvements across all its key priorities, this has
been done through the sub-groups and the Executive has not met regularly. As such the
board agreed in October 2019 to refresh the terms of reference and membership and to
fully re-launch the board in February 2020.

1.5

Within London the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) hold the responsibilities
of the Police & Crime Commissioners that are elected outside of London. This includes the
setting of policing budgets and performance targets, holding the police to account and the
leadership of Safer Neighbourhood Panels. MOPAC are invited to the Safer Lambeth
Partnership and the Mayor has a duty to work with partners to prevent and tackle crime
across London.

1.6

The Safer Lambeth Executive has met once in the last year, as outlined in 1.4. This is due
to the significant increase in both pace and amount of work being delivered in the subgroups, particularly the CONTEST and Making Lambeth Safer Board. Both are new
groups chaired by the Chief Executive LBL to focus resources and activity on
counterterrorism and reducing violence against young people.

Page 15
OFFICIAL

1.7

We plan for the Executive to meet four times in 2020 as part of its refreshed mandate and
governance structure, and this will include a public meeting to share and discuss crime
trends and figures for Lambeth over the last year and three years.

1.8

The priorities of Safer Lambeth remain:
 Violence against young people
 Violence against women and girls
 Counter Terrorism

1.9

The CONTEST board monitors all aspects of counter-terrorism work in the borough. This
includes Prevent, Protect and Prepare. Its current focusses are on the borough’s Prevent
strategy (outlined in Section 5), and the development of a strategy to improve the physical
security of our public spaces.

1.10

The Making Lambeth Safer board is the programme board for the borough’s strategy to
reduce violence against young people (see section 4). It is chaired by the Chief Executive
LBL and is one of the organisations main corporate transformation programmes. It
oversees work across all areas of the council and partnership to reduce violence against
young people. It is responsible for the development and delivery of the longer-term public
health strategy to tackle this issue. It is supported by a formal programme management
governance system and framework to ensure that we are delivering to our promises,
spending our resources effectively and measuring the impact of the changes and new
services we are implementing.

1.11

The VAWG Delivery Board meets on a quarterly basis to oversee the implementation of
the four-year VAWG strategy. We are currently in the initial stages of preparing to refresh
this strategy in 2020.

1.12

The Youth Justice Board is the statutory board that oversees the performance and
management of the Youth Offending Service, and is a regular, high level partnership
meeting. It is joint chaired by the council and police and reports into the Children and
Young People’s Partnership, as well as Safer Lambeth.

Page 16
OFFICIAL

2

Operational Context

Within Lambeth Council – Community Safety
2.1

There have been significant changes to the council’s Community Safety service over the
last year. The service has been moved into the Children’s Services directorate to enable a
greater focus on reducing violence against young people and a more people focussed
approach to high impact crime.

2.2

As part of these changes, the service has undergone a restructure that increases the
resources available to deliver against our priorities. This includes:




A more senior assistant director role to oversee development and delivery of
the strategy and wider crime and disorder issues
A combined larger counter-terrorism team including a dedicated officer for
physical space protection (the Protect agenda)
The creation of a new Lambeth Violence Reduction Unit (VRU), based on the
Glasgow model, to embed violence reduction across the entire organisation
and support the delivery of the strategy

2.3

The focus of the service has been counterterrorism and reducing violence against young
people, including gang disruption, as outlined in the appropriate sections. Additionally, the
service is leading on the council’s wider approach and strategy to Modern Slavery.

2.4

Antisocial behaviour and noise sit within the Public Protection, Assurance and Regulatory
Services team within the Environment division as part of the Resident’s Services
Directorate. It is responsible for low level crime and disorder such as anti-social behaviour
and neighbourhood-based issues. It also has responsibility for trading standards, licensing
and food health and safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity and combines
those functions to keep Lambeth streets and vulnerable people safe. This includes our
revised out of hours Noise Service.

Finances
2.5

A permanent budget uplift of £500,000 was provided in 2019/20 to deliver on the Making
Lambeth Safer programme to reduce violence against young people. This rises to
£1,000,000 in 2020/21. This is a permanent increase in funding to ensure we can meet our
promises to make Lambeth the safest possible borough for our young people to grow in
and realise their aspirations.

2.6

Several of our services are funded through MOPAC grant funding. We receive £1,373,972
from MOPAC (£686,986 for the financial years 2019-20 and 2020-21 respectively) that we
use to fund the gang violence reduction team, our integrated offender management
service, the Beth centre for female offenders, the assessment and referral service for drug
testing in Brixton custody suite, and to address the shortfall in our violence against women
work. In addition, the Beth Centre is being funded to act as the hub for the South London
Alliance for female offending work, working across Lambeth, Croydon, Southwark, Sutton,
Wandsworth and Lewisham to deliver services for female offenders.

2.7

The council has supported several third sector organisations across Lambeth to attract
grant funding from the Home Office and Mayor of London across 2019, including funding
to tackle youth violence and Building a Stronger Britain Together (BSBT) funds. This is
part of the council’s commitment to supporting third sector organisations and work with
them to reduce crime and disorder in Lambeth.

Page 17
OFFICIAL
2.8

We have additionally secured further funding from central government for a wide array of
new services for Lambeth, including:







£500,000 from the Home Office to increase our Early Help provision to prevent
youth violence.
£778,000 from the Youth Endowment fund to expand and scale up the Divert Youth
programme in Brixton custody so that every young person who goes in Brixton
police station will have support to help them avoid entering the criminal justice
system
£200,000 from the London Violence Reduction Unit to deliver projects aimed at
disrupting Lambeth’s Drug Markets, reducing re-offending through expanding our
out of hours support provision for high risk young offenders and expanding our inschool programme of training and help for young people of all ages
The London VRU has additionally agreed to fund three targeted programmes in
Lambeth to reduce school exclusions, which will start in early 2020 in ten Lambeth
schools.

Page 18
OFFICIAL

Lambeth Police

2.9
2.9.1

On the 24th January 2019, Lambeth and Southwark borough policing units merged into
a single command to become the Central South Basic Command Unit (BCU) as part of
the MPS reorganisation of frontline policing. The current senior leadership command
structure is as per the below organogram:

BCU Commander
Det Ch Supt Simon Messinger

HQ
Supt Tom Nauhton Ch Insp Lisa
Maslen

Response

Neighbourhoods

Investigation

Safeguarding

Supt Kris Wright

Supt Ian Howells

Det Nicky Arrowsmith

Det Supt Iain Keating

Ch Insp Peter McGarry

Ch Insp Annmarie Cowley

A/Det Ch Insp Phil Coster

BCU Commander

HQ

Det Ch Supt Simon
Messinger

Supt Tom Naughton

Response

Det Ch Insp Mel Laremore

Ch Insp Lisa Maslen

Leadership support

Ch Insp Peter McGarry

24/7 respons to emergency calls
BCU patrols

Supt Kris Wright

Neighbourhoods

Det Ch Insp Teresa Foster

Investigation of volume crime

Ch Insp Annmarie Cowley

Community engagement and partnership
Schools and youth engagement

Supt Ian Howells

Licensing
Anti-social behaviour
Counter-terrorism

Investigation

A/Det Ch Insp Phil Coster

Det Supt Nicky Arrowsmith

Safeguarding

Investigation of serious or complex crime
Proactive policing
Gangs
Offender management

Det Ch Insp Teresa Foster

Domestic abuse
Hate crime

Det Supt Iain Keating
Det Ch Insp Mel Laremore

Sexual offending
Vulnerable children and adults
MASH

Page 19
OFFICIAL
2.9.2

2.9.3

Whilst this reorganisation represented a significant change for the MPS and included
the incorporation of elements of central serious crime departments into the structure,
the focus of the BCU leadership team throughout was to ensure that service delivery
was maintained and enhanced. One year on, the BCU is now on a firm footing with
structures and staff well embedded and we have continued to work extremely closely
with the Local Authority and our key local partners and stakeholders in what we view
as a very strong local partnership.
From a general policing perspective pan MPS, 2019 has been a high demand year
including the policing of the various Extinction Rebellion events, major international
diplomatic visits, the policing of Brexit related protests, the terrorist attack on London
Bridge as well as the annual major events in London and the borough (e.g. Lambeth
Country Show and SW4). Officers and staff from the BCU have played their full part in
supporting these events whilst ensuring the daily borough demand has also been met.
As we move into 2020, it is anticipated that the MPS will begin to grow and whilst the
exact detail of this growth is awaited it is expected that all front line BCUs will see an
uplift in staff over the next 2 years.

Summary of the key BCU departments
BCU HQ Strand:
2.9.4
Although not public facing, the BCU HQ is the unit that coordinates the BCU wide
activity. Within this is the 24/7 Operations Room that drives the BCU business, actively
scanning and identifying threat, harm and risk and coordinating the response to
emerging issues. This strand also oversees delivery of a wide range of key services
including the criminal justice process, resource and staff planning, event and
operational planning, health and safety, training and organisational change to name
but a few.

Response Strand:
2.9.5
The response strand is the primary strand tasked with servicing the BCUs significant
call demand. They are regularly confronted with the full range of policing issues, from
dealing with challenging and violent individuals through to supporting the vulnerable,
as well as policing events and major incidents. The response teams on the BCU
regularly deal with significant critical incidents and demonstrate an excellent capability
and proficiency in this area. As well as responding to the reported demand, a key area
of work is the proactive identification of perpetrators and crime in action and the
identification of individual safeguarding concerns. Officers are now more focussed on
the wider needs of vulnerable individuals and how to access the support available from
within the BCU and through our partners, to better meet the public’s need.
2.9.6

Under the BCU, response officers now carry out their own crime investigations and this
has provided a better victim experience more often now dealing with the same
reporting officer, as well as allowing for the upskilling of officers in investigative
techniques. The investigative process has been augmented by the deployment of
detective sergeants assigned to each team to improve the service provided to the
victim.

Page 20
OFFICIAL

Neighbourhood and Partnership Policing:
2.9.7
From a neighbourhood policing point of view the structure is as previously briefed to
the committee and outlined below:

2.9.8

The breadth of activity across the BCU has focussed on the key priorities for the MPS
and the partnership. Combatting serious youth violence and violence generally is
clearly a significant priority as well as targeting the drivers of such crime including the
drugs market. From a neighbourhood policing aspect there is a renewed focus on
combatting drug related crime in our communities and identifying and supporting
vulnerable individuals who are exploited by criminal networks.

2.9.9

In support of the general proactive activity across the BCU, neighbourhood teams are
focussed on dealing with a wide range of local problems and examples of work include
drugs warrants, closure orders and the use of judicial restrictions such as Criminal
Behaviour Orders and Gang Injunctions to combat persistent recidivist offenders and
protect our communities. Throughout, we work closely with our partners to problem
solve and ensure individuals within our communities who are identified as vulnerable to
exploitation are supported and safeguarded where appropriate.

2.9.10

Community engagement and increasing trust and confidence in the police remains a
key driver for the MPS. In early 2019, the Lambeth Independent Advisory Group
(I.A.G.) was refreshed with Pastor Lorraine Jones and Umar Mahmood voted in as
chair and deputy. The I.A.G. aims to improve communication between the police and
the community and help to forge a greater mutual understanding and improving trust
and confidence in the MPS.

2.9.11

Over the course of the year, the new I.A.G leadership has built on the organisation’s
previous work and has a wide-ranging membership who are able to independently
advise the police on a range of issues and community concerns. These can range from
the policing of specific incidents or to general matters of policy or our policing
approach. The I.A.G. has already proved invaluable to improving police and

Page 21
OFFICIAL
community relations and whilst there is still significant distrust in some areas, the MPS
is determined to be a more open organisation and the role of the I.A.G is key to this.
2.9.12

Examples of activity that have been undertaken over the course of the last year include
community members being invited to observe policing operations, playing a key part
on borough critical incident Gold Groups, briefings to front line staff, participation at
community meetings and opening up our custody suite to visits from the community.
Looking forward to 2020, we will be utilising the I.A.G’s skills and advice to help
orientate our new recruits to Lambeth and to continue to help bridge the gap between
policing and the community and shape the way we work.

2.9.13

In addition to the I.A.G and our work with our statutory partners, there is a wide range
of community and representative groups that we work closely with. Each ward has a
panel of community members who meet with their local police to discuss and express
concerns and work with their local team to combat crime and disorder and to boost
local relationships. These are the bedrock of neighbourhood policing that then feed
into the Lambeth Safer Neighbourhood Board, which meets quarterly to review policing
activities and areas of concern. Within this structure also sits the Community
Monitoring Group that reviews the police approach to stop and search and
implementation of Section 60 powers.

2.9.14

Additionally, we work closely with our business community and Business Improvement
Districts, some of whom fund a number of officers in high demand locations. Other key
organisations include the Lambeth Faith Forum and Black Thrive both of whom are key
partners for the MPS in understanding local community concerns and supporting the
development of initiatives to improve the experience of policing by community and faith
groups and their subsequent confidence in it.

2.9.15

Youth engagement is a central focus of our activity with our schools and youth
engagement officers working closely with our secondary and junior schools and local
partners to help safeguard our young people. A wide range of innovative activities
have been undertaken including supporting the Dwaynamics boxing gym with officers
helping to train the young people. We have also introduced boxing and sports training
by police officers into the borough’s secondary pupil referral unit at Park Campus.

2.9.16

There is a range of other youth engagement initiatives that we run or support as well
as the standard work of our schools officers. These include the Kickoff@3 football
tournament which is now becoming pan-MPS; the schools summer project for young
people in the holidays (again based from Park Campus); working closely with the
military and the LFB supporting the above initiatives and including developing setpiece boxing tournaments supported by both the MPS and the British Army for young
people.

2.9.17

Additionally, the MPS has a vibrant and active Volunteer Police Cadets programme
with just over 150 cadets of various ages and from across the borough taking part.
Ages of the cadets range from 10-18 years old and include a mixture of boys and girls,
85% of whom are from a BAME background and all cadets live in the borough. A
number of our cadets go on to join the organisation. Over the past year, their list of
accomplishments includes obtaining the Duke of Edinburgh Award; receiving 12 Jack
Petchey Awards and participating in Community Engagement Events such as the
Lambeth Country Show, Lambeth Weapon Sweeps/Leaflet Drops and supporting test
purchasing operation with Lambeth trading standards.

Page 22
OFFICIAL
Investigations:
2.9.18
The C.I.D. is based at Walworth and incorporates the gangs and offender
management functions. Since the commencement of the BCU in January 2019,
serious youth violence, robbery and organised criminal gangs have remained a priority.
At the commencement of 2019, the proactive units were merged, and a renewed
emphasis placed on preventing serious crime and gang related violence was
embraced. This has allowed for the greater exploitation of information and intelligence
as well as a wider safeguarding perspective for individuals and has assisted in
delivering a BCU-wide reduction in serious youth violence. The new structure has also
assisted in the targeting of County Line offending as well as organised criminal
networks through long-term proactive operations. An example of this work is Operation
Cytheros from September 2019 that led to the arrest and charging of 29 drug dealers
involved in the organised supply of class A and B drugs in the north of the borough.
2.9.19

In 2018, criminal gangs from Lambeth and Southwark were responsible for exporting
twice as many County Lines when compared to any other policing area in the UK. We
have this year alone identified and prosecuted in excess of 25 lines and Central South
has now seen a reduction in such offending all be it, it remains a major focus for us.

2.9.20

Across offender management teams, colocation of units within both the Local Authority
and National Probation Service continues to promote a positive working relationship
and maintains the required integral partnership working targeted on high harm and
high reoffending subjects. The merger has allowed an uplift of staffing which ensures
officers are managing offender numbers within the recommended national guidelines.
After initially keeping the teams as separate Lambeth and Southwark, we then merged
them to become a singular YOTS team and singular IOM team overseen by a sergeant
for each. This has been very positive with Heads of Service and has enhanced the
capability of both units with teams being easily flexed in response to demand.

Safeguarding:
2.9.21
Prior to the BCU separate units investigated domestic abuse, sexual abuse and child
abuse and these offences often had links or overlapped. This led to multiple units
dealing with the same victim or family over the course of investigations leading to
inconsistency in approach duplication of effort and most importantly multiple points of
contact that were clearly not in the best interest of the victim. Now there are multiskilled investigation teams that deal with the entire range of demand and better meets
the needs of the victim.
2.9.22

Within the BCU there is a greater emphasis on safeguarding being the responsibility of
all and not just specific units. This has been done by ensuring safeguarding is at the
forefront of every officer and police staff members mind and there is now a single point
of entry for information for assessment through the Multi-Agency-Safeguarding-Hub to
ensure vulnerable individuals get the right support first time from police and our
partners with clear referral pathways and lead agency nominations.

2.9.23

The Safeguarding strand also delivers on a wide range of demands including dealing
with mental health, missing persons and Level 1 Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)
referrals. There is also an enhanced research function that supports our referrals and
investigations teams with their caseload. A dedicated OCSAE (online child sexual
abuse & exploitation) team has also been established and has improved the response
to this type of offending improving our service to vulnerable victims and the early
identification and protection of vulnerable children as well as arrest and prosecution of
high harm offenders.

Page 23
OFFICIAL

The BCU Safeguarding Structure is as follows:

Page 24
OFFICIAL
2.10 Health – Lambeth Clinical Commissioning Group
2.10.1

NHS Lambeth Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is the organisation responsible for
commissioning or ‘planning, buying and monitoring’ the majority of healthcare services
for people who are registered with GP Practices, and who may live or work in the
borough of Lambeth. In 2019/20 we are responsible for spending circa £568 million on
hospital and community health services for our patients to ensure that support is
available to help people stay as healthy and independent and that high-quality care is
available to them when they need it most.

2.10.2

Our mission is to improve the health of and reduce inequalities for Lambeth people and
to commission high quality health services on their behalf, to help us make a reality of
this ambition through being;







People centred - we will work to co-produce services, built around individuals
and population needs, enabling people to stay healthy and manage their own
care;
Prevention focused - we will prioritise prevention of ill health and the factors
that create it, enabling people to live longer and healthier lives;
Integrated - we will commission services in a way that brings service provision
together around the needs of people and reduces boundaries and barriers to
care;
Consistent - we will promote high quality, accessible, equitable and safe
services and reduce variation and variability in provision.
Innovative - we will use 21st century technologies to provide better services,
better information and to promote choices; and
Deliver best value - we will ensure we live within our means and use our
resources well.

2.10.3

We work closely with our 41 member GP Practices and we are committed to our
valued local partnerships in the way we work. Alongside the wider NHS, our key
partners include the London Borough of Lambeth, local schools, colleges and
universities, the police, Healthwatch Lambeth, voluntary and community organisations
and local people.

2.10.4

The majority of people using the NHS in Lambeth will use mainly primary and
community health services. These are commissioned from;
 GP practices, pharmacists, opticians and dentists;
 Community health services (provided by Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation
Trust), such as district and school nursing, health visiting, specialist child health,
therapy services and care for older people;
 The London Ambulance Service; and
 Voluntary and third sector care providers.

2.10.5

When local people require more specialist care, we mainly commission locally from:
 Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust, King’s College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust and St George’s University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust to
provide inpatient, outpatient, day and emergency hospital care; and
 South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust to provide mental health and
addictions services.

2.10.6

We know that no single organisation can tackle the health and wellbeing challenges
we face in Lambeth alone. With a complex and changing pattern of health needs,
growing demand for services and limited resources, the only way forward is for the

Page 25
OFFICIAL
NHS, the Council, the voluntary and community sector, and patients and the public to
work across the borough, and across the wider south east London region, to ensure
that innovation is shared and that we make the best possible use of our resources. We
are committed to ensuring that effective partnerships are central to how we work to
improve health and care and involve local people.
2.10.7

Lambeth Together is our local care partnership, bringing together the great things we
are already doing and identifying other opportunities in support of our collective vision
to improve health and wellbeing and reduce inequalities. Lambeth Together is:




A way of working, a culture that unites us
The way we organise services around people and places
How we work together as a whole system

Within this system are ‘delivery alliances’ for specific populations and people as
follows:
 Neighbourhood Based Care and Wellbeing
 Living Well Network
 Complex Personalised Support
2.10.8

We work in active partnership with all our local provider partners, in particular Guy’s
and St Thomas’ Foundation Trust, King’s College Hospital Foundation Trust and South
London and the Maudsley Foundation within King’s Health Partners Academic Health
Sciences Centre, to support improved service quality and more joined up care. A
number of our most important initiatives are supported by the Guy’s and St Thomas’
Charity.

Safeguarding
2.10.9
Safeguarding is an important aspect of our work and along with NHS Trusts we have
contributed fully to the Lambeth Children’s Safeguarding Board and the Lambeth
Adults Safeguarding Board, working with partners across a broad range of key
priorities to support and protect the most vulnerable and at risk within our communities.
2.10.10

In 2019, following the changes in the statutory guidance, we worked with Lambeth
partners to agree our new children’s safeguarding arrangements within the borough.
The new Lambeth Safeguarding Children’s Partnership went live in August 2019.

Local urgent care services
2.10.11 Local urgent care services work to support those who require care and support at
times of crisis, injury and harm. The local NHS works with the Redthread Youth
Violence Intervention Programme runs in hospital emergency departments and in
partnership with the major trauma network. This innovative service aims to reduce
serious youth violence and has improved the support available to young victims of
violence.
Children and Young People
2.10.12 More widely we work across the Lambeth Children and Young People’s Partnership to
ensure Lambeth is one of the best places in the world for our children and young
people to grow up.
2.10.13

This begins with the best start in life, and we have integrated early years offer
alongside the Lambeth Early Action Partnership (LEAP) programme, which is working
specifically with children in the 4 most deprived wards of the borough.

Page 26
OFFICIAL
2.10.14

Our Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service has been redesigned in 2019 and is
now working on improving access for those young people who need support with their
emotional health and wellbeing; while our lower level emotional health offer has
strengthened with the wide roll-out of Kooth, an online counselling service.

2.10.15

Lambeth Made, the borough-wide campaign has also grown this year and has
provided multiple opportunities for children and families to engage in positive activities
as varied as working on their own social enterprise right through to organising a music
festival.

Adult Mental Health
2.10.16 As part of the Living Well Network Alliance for adult mental health services we are
committed to improving our response for individuals into mental health crisis. The
vision is to provide safes space for residents of Lambeth, which will operate extended
hours across the Borough.
2.10.17

Part of this includes the expansion of support services and a 24/7 advice and peer
support line. Those who are struggling to access community support can expect to
have an urgent assessment with in four hours from a dedicated Crisis Outreach
Service (COS), which is accessible through the Lambeth Single Point of Access for
Mental Health. The team will provide an on the day assessment, where appropriate,
and develop a crisis plan and onward support from a relevant service.

2.10.18

We continue to work closely with colleagues in the Metropolitan police and other
services to ensure that when people are in crisis, that they can receive swift and
appropriate support in an appropriate setting.

2.10.19

In addition, in partnership with the Metropolitan Police and London Ambulance service,
an out of hours Crisis Assessment Team (CAT) has been operating for over two years.
CAT consists of nurses and joint police and ambulance crews and responds to
people’s distress and safety issues following 911 calls.

Page 27
OFFICIAL
2.11 London Fire Brigade
2.11.1
London Fire Brigade for the borough of Lambeth has a Borough Commander (Norman
Perry) and is served by four land stations and 1 river station:
 Brixton Fire Station – Station Commander Paul Morgan
 Clapham & Lambeth Fire Stations – Station Commander Paul Sadler
 Lambeth River Station – Station Commander Brinley Powell
 West Norwood Fire Station – Station Commander Gary Melia
2.11.2

The Station Commanders also work pan-borough to enable them to fulfil the remits
they respectively lead on, such as traffic, Fire Safety and Community safety; however,
all officers also work pan-London for operational commitments. We work closely with
our Fire Safety colleagues and the Local Authority to ensure information is updated on
housing with regards to Fire Safety Regulation and risks within the borough, especially
on High Rise buildings.

2.11.3

Apart from responding to and training for a variety of different and challenging
operational incidents, the London Fire Brigades focus is to protect all, particularly the
most vulnerable. We aim to achieve this by:

2.11.4

Home Fire Safety Visits - HFSV is a free service to anyone living within London.
Crews attend your dwelling and give you personalised advice on Fire Safety within the
home and how to prevent fires. Smoke alarms are also supplied and installed free of
charge. This service is readily available by calling 0800 028 4428. We have a target of
3700 visits per year and this target was reached over 2019.

2.11.5

Of the households visited the HFSV programme between 1st January – 16th December
2019:
 65% were households with social rent
 57% were in a rented/social flat
 30% had an alarm installed by the team
 33% declared a disability
 39.8% were occupied by one person (down from 77.8% in 2018)
 25.5% had a resident who smoked (down from 40.7% in 2018)
 35.9% had a resident aged 60+ (up from 22.2% in 2018)

2.11.6

We are working closely with the Local Authority and other partners on ways in which
those that are most vulnerable within the borough can be recognised and targeted with
the HFSV to help protect them against Fire. For example, it would be worth exploring if
care workers, home helps or other agencies that work with Lambeth Council and go
into people’s homes could identify and refer those requiring a home fire safety visit to
us.

2.11.7

Working with young people - We also work closely with partners within the borough
on other initiatives that aim to educate and protect younger people, which includes
highly successful programmes such as LIFE, the Fire Cadets and a schoolsengagement programme.

2.11.8

LIFE: Local Intervention Fire Education is aimed at young people aged between 14
and 17 who are at risk, disengaged, vulnerable or who lack positive aspirations.
Drawing data from our LIFE database with the record from 2009-present I can confirm
the following (the data below is for the young people living/studying in the borough of
Lambeth:

Page 28
OFFICIAL

Referral Source
(completers)

Participation

Reasons for referral
(completers)

Number of entry
participants

424

Educational group

310

Under performing at
School

163

Number of
Completers

366

Support group

36

Behavioural issues

102

Female Completers

67

Youth Offending

20

Other

101

Male Completers

299

2.11.9

Cadets: Fire Cadets is a nationally recognized youth engagement programme offering
keen and committed young people, between the age of 14-17 the opportunity to gain a
BTEC qualification, develop teamwork and personal skills and gain confidence.

2.11.10

There are currently 9 First Year Fire Cadets and 2 Officer Cadets based at the
Clapham Station, of whom 6 are Male and 5 Female. It should be noted that 4 cadets
are previous LIFE programme graduates.

2.11.11

School Education Team: The school education team have been successful in
delivering classroom-based workshops across the borough. The Primary School
programme focuses on PDE (Prevention, Detection and Escape), while the team also
visits early year groups and attends events such as Junior Citizens and groups that are
part of the Prison Me No Way programme.

2.11.12

There is a priority rating for each school in London, and all high or very high priority
rating schools come under the Education Team’s remit. If they are low or medium
rating, then the local station would tend to visit those schools. With regards to Lambeth
this equates to 55 Primary Schools being visited by the Education Team and the
remaining 11 by officers from their local station.

2.11.13

Primary School – PDE: The PDE programme is aimed at Year 2 and Year 5 pupils only
and the designed package is delivered specifically to these age groups due to the
content and sensitive nature of the lesson. The 60-minute long workshops are provided
to schools completely free of charge and offered annually. Lambeth schools are
generally very receptive to our workshops, and we get a lot of good feedback from both
pupils and teachers.

Page 29
OFFICIAL
2.12 National Probation Service
2.12.1
Due to a delay in obtaining approval from the Ministry of Justice to provide the relevant
information for this report the NPS update will be disseminated shortly after the
Scrutiny Panel convenes.

Page 30
OFFICIAL

3

Year in Review Performance

London Context: Financial Year 2018-19
3.1

Crime throughout London has increased in the last 12 months by 4.5%, in particular in
relation to acquisitive crime, which saw an increase of 7% for Robbery and 3% for Burglary
in a Dwelling. Theft of Motor Vehicles experienced the highest increase of 15%. Lambeth
has seen a decline of 21% and Theft of Motor Vehicles has declined by 11%. However
Burglary offences have increased by 8%.

Chart 1: Comparison of Inner London Boroughs: Total Notable Offences 2018-19

3.2

Knife crime with injury for victims aged 1-24 has experienced a 15% decline throughout
London. Serious Youth Violence (SYV) throughout London has decreased by 3%. Lambeth
has seen a 25% decline.

3.3

Total Robbery offences have declined by 22% from the last reporting period (Financial Year
2017-18). Despite this improvement Lambeth Robbery offences are still 20% higher than
the London overall average.

Page 31
OFFICIAL

Lambeth Context
3.4

Table 1 below shows the London Landscape crime types volumes over the last 3 financial
years in Lambeth:

Table 1: Lambeth Financial Year 2018-19 Key Crime Type Volumes
Lambeth Financial Year Key Crime Type Volumes
Crime Breakdown

Financial Year 16/17

Financial Year 17/18

Financial Year 18/19

% Change

Count Difference

Direction of Change

Total Notifiable Offences

35183

35023

37739

7.75%

2716 Increase

Violence Against the Person

10737

10765

11754

9.19%

989 Increase

Burglary Dwelling

1949

2185

2550

16.70%

365 Increase

Personal Robbery

1213

2100

2131

1.48%

Hate Crime

7233

7167

6272

-12.49%

31

9

9

0.00%

Homophobic Hate Crime

164

152

189

24.34%

37 Increase

Racist and Religious Hate Crime

652

592

739

24.83%

147 Increase

Disability Hate Crime

31 Minor Increase
-895 Decrease
0 No change

9

4

10

150.00%

6 Minor Increase

Domestic Hate Crime

6377

6410

5308

-17.19%

-1102 Signnificant decrease

Serious Youth Violence

332

449

288

-35.86%

-161 Signnificant decrease

Knife Crime

654

729

618

-15.23%

-111 Decrease

Gun Crime

133

139

154

10.79%

Transgender Hate Crime

3.5

15 Minor Increase

With reference to Appendix 3, the following points highlight where Lambeth is currently
positioned in the top 10 boroughs across London over the 12 months April 2018 – March
2019 (in line with previous reporting periods), based on the London Landscape offence
categories:
 Lambeth is ranked 11th for Non-Domestic Violence out of London boroughs
 Lambeth has recorded 9th highest for Knife Crime offences out of all London boroughs
 Lambeth is ranked 3rd highest against of all boroughs for Violence Against the Person
(VAP)
 In terms of the total amount of recorded crime (TNO’s) Lambeth is the 4th highest in
London
 Lambeth is ranked 12th for Serious Youth Violence offences compared to other London
boroughs
 Total Theft offences places Lambeth 5th in London in the last 12 months
 Total Sexual offences places Lambeth 2nd in London in the last 12 months
 Lambeth also ranked 2nd for total recorded Drug offences. However, this represents a
proactive effort by police to target drug related offending in the borough
 Lambeth ranked 2nd for Criminal Damage offences
 Lambeth ranks 7th for Robbery offences
 Lambeth ranks 5th for Burglary offences
 Lambeth is ranked 2nd for Hate Crime

Page 32
OFFICIAL

Lambeth context: Yearly Trends
3.6

The chart below (Chart 2) indicates that overall crime rises during the summer months and
drops during the winter. The larger increase during July 2018 could be attributed to the
exceptional weather that was experienced that summer with more people visiting public
spaces and for a longer timeframe during the period of daylight savings. The reduction in
reported crime and disorder during the winter months follows the anticipated seasonal
trends.
Chart 2: Reported crime and disorder from November 2017 – October 2019

3.7

Breaking this data into a year-to-year review, Charts 3 and 4 and Table 2 below indicate
that while there has only been a slight increase in reported crime and disorder from
November 2018 – October 2019 compared to the previous year, there has been a
particular increase in the number of Thefts (10%), Public Order Offences (7.8%) and
incidents of Violence Against the Person (4.57%) while there have been reductions in
reported incidents of Robbery (13.1%), Possession of Weapons (9.48%) and Vehicle
Offences (8.46%).

3.8

While reports of Arson & Criminal Damage have slightly decreased (down 4%) and
Burglary has slightly increased (up 2.78%), Sexual Offences and reports of Drug Offences
have only slightly reduced.

Page 33
OFFICIAL

Chart 3: Reported crime and disorder in Lambeth from November
2017 – October 2018

Chart 4: Reported crime and disorder in Lambeth from November 2018
– October 2019

Page 34
OFFICIAL

Table 2: Breakdown of reported crime and disorder from November 2017 – October 2019
Incident Reported
Reported Crime
Reported Crime Percentage Increase /
2017-18
2018-19
Decrease
Theft
9398
10,338
Up 10%
Violence Against the
8670
9067
Up 4.57%
Person
Vehicle Offences
4015
3675
Down 8.46%
Burglary
3090
3175
Up 2.75%
Arson & Criminal
2398
2301
Down 4%
Damage
Drug Offences
2154
2147
Down 0.3%
Public Order Offences
1919
2069
Up 7.8%
Robbery
1496
1299
Down 13.1%
Sexual Offences
1026
1021
Down 0.48%
Possession of
485
439
Down 9.48%
Weapons
Miscellaneous Crimes
454
430
Down 5.2%
Against Society
Historical Fraud &
0
0
No change
Forgery

1.6

The trends presented in Charts 5 and 6 below show how reported Thefts have increased
by 10% over the 12 months to October 2019 compared to the previous 12 months, with
this figure acting in line with seasonal trends (summer spikes and winter troughs) towards
the current 3-year average of 821 reported thefts. Violence Against the Person follows a
similar seasonal trend, with an increase of 4.58% over the 12 months to October 2019
compared to the previous 12 months.
Chart 5: Reported Theft in Lambeth from November 2016 – October 2019

Page 35
OFFICIAL

Chart 6: Reported Violence Against the Person in Lambeth from
November 2016 – October 2019

Chart 7: Reported Vehicle Offences in Lambeth from November 2016 –
October 2019

Page 36
OFFICIAL
1.7

Chart 7 above indicates how over the 12 months to October 2019 compared to the
previous 12 months Vehicle Offences have reduced by 8.47% to 304 reported incidents,
slightly above the 3-year average of 299. While somewhat far from the low of 204 reported
incidents in February 2017, data shows that the latest figures are way below the peak of
424 offences reported in May 2018. Reasons for the reduction include an improvement in
anti-theft technology by car manufacturers and little use of stolen mopeds in relation to
incidents of theft, anti-social behaviour or Serious Youth Violence in the borough.

1.8

Overall Burglary rates have increased by 2.78% over the 12 months to October 2019
compared to the previous 12 months mainly due to a spike in the Spring of 2019, which is
slightly above the London average increase of 2.46%. However, as Chart 8 indicates three
are also seasonal trends with regards to burglaries in the borough with rates tending to
increase in the summers months, possibly due to residents keeping doors and windows
open to cope with the heat.
Chart 8: Reported Burglaries in Lambeth from November 2016 –
October 2019

1.9

Chart 9 below indicates the fluctuations in Robbery incidents over a 5-year period.
Although there was a seasonal spike in recorded incidents during the summer of 2019, the
general trend since late 2017 is that Robbery has been reducing with levels often falling
below the average 110 per month (which is also the rate recorded at the end of 2014) and
a decrease of 13.5% in the 12 months to October 2019 compared to the previous 12
months.

Page 37
OFFICIAL
Chart 9: Reported Robberies in Lambeth from November 2014 –
October 2019

1.10 However, compare these rates to those over the same period from a pan-London
perspective (see Chart 10) which shows a different trend – an increase of 16.87% in the
12 months to October 2019 compared to the previous 12 months.
Chart 10: Reported Robberies across London from November 2014 –
October 2019

Page 38
OFFICIAL

Serious Youth Violence
1.11

Lambeth has seen a marked improvement in reduction of Serious Youth Violence offences
in 2018-19 compared to the last reporting period, SYV incidents are down by 38%. Lambeth
which is customarily in the top 5 offending boroughs in London for SYV, is now ranked 12th
out of 33 London boroughs.

1.12

Lambeth has seen a 19% decrease in overall SYV offences over the last three Financial
Year reporting periods.

1.13

Lambeth has experienced a significant drop in SYV offences between July and August due
to targeted Trident led operations in hotspot areas in response to increased gang activity.
However, despite SYV offences decreasing the intensity of the incidents has not as we
have had 7 murders in 2018-19, that is 5 more than in 2016-17 and two more than 201718.

1.14

Graph 1 below provides a monthly breakdown of SYV offences in Lambeth over the last 4
financial years. After experiencing a peak in October 2017, SYV offences have been on a
decline and gone as low 55% below Lambeth’s average.

Graph 1: Lambeth Serious Youth Violence Financial Years 2015-16 to 2018-19

1.15

Knife crime with injuries where the victims is aged between 1-24 in Lambeth has decreased
by 25% in 2018-19, despite the reduction Lambeth is still ranked 3rd highest for knife crime
in London (any crime involving a knife). However, it should be noted that Lambeth has one
of the most consistently high recorded levels of knife crime injuries throughout London,
regularly appearing in the top five for knife/bladed article-based offences.

Page 39
OFFICIAL

Ward Context
Table 3: crime rates per 1000 people for violent crime in Lambeth (based on ward level
population data from the Office of National Statistics in 2016)
Rate per 1000

Ward Ward Name

Violence Against the
Person Offs

Serious Youth
Violence

Total
Robbery
Offs

Non-Domestic
VWI Offs

Bishop's

77.7

2.0

10.9

18.2

Coldharbour

68.9

1.4

8.3

19.3

Tulse Hill

30.5

1.3

3.1

6.5

Larkhall

36.4

1.2

3.0

9.9

Vassall

31.6

1.1

2.0

5.9

Gipsy Hill

34.7

1.0

2.9

6.0

Ferndale

46.5

1.0

6.2

11.6

Oval

47.0

1.0

6.3

12.8

Herne Hill

33.7

0.9

3.9

7.5

Stockwell

31.5

0.8

3.4

7.9

Streatham Wells

22.1

0.8

2.4

3.5

Brixton Hill

38.7

0.8

4.6

10.6

Prince's

32.0

0.8

5.1

7.7

Thurlow Park

30.3

0.8

4.3

6.8

St Leonard's

37.2

0.7

4.4

7.5

Knight's Hill

26.3

0.7

2.5

5.1

Clapham Common

24.4

0.7

3.0

5.6

Clapham Town

43.1

0.4

5.2

12.0

Streatham Hill

26.9

0.4

2.5

6.0

Streatham South

19.4

0.3

1.9

3.2

Thornton

16.0

0.2

0.7

3.1

1.16

Table 3 highlights Coldharbour and Bishops as Lambeth’s most violent wards. This is likely
to be due to the high concentration of licensed premises in the Coldharbour ward and the
busy night-time economy, in addition to high levels of community tension in the area.
Bishops covers the Southbank – the lowest residential population with the highest footfall

Page 40
OFFICIAL
in the borough, an area known to attract offenders from outside the borough to offend in
this location this coupled with the low residential population in this area has the potential to
skew the calculation to show higher rates of crime in this area.
1.17

Closely tied to violent offences is the high rate of robbery offences that occur in Bishops
and Coldharbour ward. Robbery offences are closely linked to VAP and SYV offences as
robbery is the initiating offences which tends to escalate to VAP or SYV.

1.18

Table 4 (below) shows the total recorded crime in each ward based on crime per 1000
people and identifies that the Streatham South has shown the most improvement over the
last year with a 10% reduction in total notifiable offences. However neighbouring wards,
Streatham Hill and Streatham Wells, have shown an increase from 9-13%. This is due to
increases in VAP and Burglary offences (+14%) in the area. As with previous reports
Bishop’s and Coldharbour recorded the highest crime rate per population.

1.19

Bishop’s ward experienced the highest increase in offences over the year, followed closely
by Streatham Hill and Herne Will wards. Herne Hill has experienced an increase in violence
related offences, in particular Violence Against the Person (VAP), Personal Theft (+9%),
SYV (+8%), knife offences (+10%) and a significant increase in gun crime. Streatham Hill
has experienced an increase in VAP offences (+14%), burglary in a dwelling (+14%) and
knife crime (+30%).

1.20

Bishop’s ward experienced the highest increase in offences over the year, followed closely
by Streatham Hill and Herne Will wards. Herne Hill has experienced an increase in violence
related offences, in particular Violence Against the Person (VAP), Personal Theft (+9%),
SYV (+8%), knife offences (+10%) and a significant increase in gun crime. Streatham Hill
has experienced an increase in VAP offences (+14%), burglary in a dwelling (+14%) and
knife crime (+30%).

Page 41
OFFICIAL

Table 4: TNO Offences 2018-19
Ward

Rate per 1000

% Change from 2017-18

Bishop's

316.82

15.48%

Coldharbour

198.73

-2.12%

Clapham Town

167.59

-1.26%

Ferndale

164.23

-8.14%

Oval

151.83

-0.54%

Brixton Hill

113.47

0.10%

Prince's

112.39

0.89%

St Leonard's

110.98

6.79%

Herne Hill

110.27

10.89%

Larkhall

108.29

-3.50%

Stockwell

94.11

3.05%

Clapham Common

93.94

0.24%

Thurlow Park

92.04

-4.29%

Vassall

90.56

-8.37%

Tulse Hill

88.62

-0.61%

Streatham Hill

84.21

12.63%

Gipsy Hill

81.45

-6.92%

Streatham South

74.21

-10.22%

Knight's Hill

71.91

-1.53%

Streatham Wells

68.01

9.59%

Thornton

54.64

1.83%

Lambeth Ranked 4th compared to London Boroughs

Page 42
OFFICIAL

4

Lambeth Made Safer - Lambeth’s Serious Youth Violence Strategy

4.1

In March 2018 Lambeth Council committed to a long-term programme to reduce violence
against young people, with the overarching aim that young people in Lambeth should be
free from violence.

4.2

As was indicated in the 2018 update, this was based on the principles that:
 Existing services and interventions needed to be revised and improved significantly.
 A longer-term approach was necessary to tackle the root causes of violence in the
community (the public health approach).
 Any successful strategy would require significant community involvement, with coproduction at the heart of the strategy.

4.3

Since then, much work has taken place in the short term to improve services. Working with
community members across numerous areas, we have made significant changes to how
we work to reduce the likelihood and impact of youth violence.

4.4

In order to ensure the transformative nature of the SYV programme is developed and can
focus on delivering change (as opposed to existing ‘business as usual’ delivery), the
programme is managed through the governance structure identified in the diagram below:

4.5

Year one has focussed on addressing immediate systemic issues in our service delivery
where we have already identified gaps and weaknesses. This includes:
 Provision for over 18s
 Improving our response to critical incidents
 Better resource planning with police colleagues
 Developing the new neighbourhood model for early help with communities.

4.6

This work is being managed through the Council and Police led workstreams with
community representation on each workstream (see diagram above and explanation
below):

Page 43
OFFICIAL


Disrupt and Deter, led by Lambeth Police: how we enforce our laws, how we
increase trust with the police, how we use our intelligence more to target the right
people, and we use our combined enforcement powers to stop youth violence
happening in Lambeth. Projects that are being delivered and are in progress
through this workstream include:
o The new Tactical Tasking and Co-ordination Group (TTCG) is in place, allowing
for joint long -term resourcing by the Council and police to prevent violence in
key areas. This is a fundamental shift from the usual reactive policing policy
and relies on predicting where violence will occur and then moving police
resources to those areas for sustained periods of time.





o

We are now doing monthly joint weapon sweeps between the police and
Council in high risk areas, to significantly increase the number of knives and
other weapons removed from the streets.

o

Letters are being sent to parents/carers of children stopped and searched three
times or more to let them know of repeat stop and searches have been
completed and are currently undergoing final review by the Met’s legal team
before being issued.

Safe Environments and Public Spaces led by Resident's Services: how we
make all our physical spaces and environments safer for young people. This
includes our housing estates, but also our transport networks, green spaces and
physical development across the borough. Examples of projects that have been
developed through this workstream include:
o

Increased surveillance: We know that that CCTV provides reassurance to
residents on our estates, so we are upgrading vandalised CCTV, especially on
the Tulse Hill Estate which is a hotspot for Serious Youth Violence.

o

Communicating the Council’s offer: Residents often complain that they are not
aware of services and support available to them. To address this a series of
summer engagement events were delivered by the Future Leaders and the
Housing team at various localities over the summer to promote the services
delivered by the Council, it’s contractors and local partners.

Families and Early Intervention, led by Early Help: how we support parents,
families and younger siblings to avoid being drawn into violence and criminality in
the first place. This focusses on long term prevention work. Projects that are in
progress through this workstream include:
o

Becoming a Trauma Informed Council: Recognising the need to become more
aware of the support needed by residents, colleagues and partners, the
Council will develop practices to ensure it becomes more Trauma Informed.
Training around this theme has already taken place across Children’s
Services and Community Safety.

o

Reducing Family Conflict: We know there is a need to provide support
packages for families that can improve relations within their unit, but greater
awareness within the Lambeth workforce (and its contractors) of identifying
and addressing family conflict is required. Using the existing packages made
available through the commissioned DWP Family Conflict Reduction
programme we can increase the number of families being referred to these

Page 44
OFFICIAL
interventions and use outcome evidence to understand the local picture of
family conflict and the root causes in Lambeth (e.g. finances, disciplining of
children and intimacy).




Response and Support, led by the Youth Offending Service: How we as a council
can better support those who are involved in youth violence, or on the edges of
violent crime, to help them exit the violent lifestyle. This also includes how we as an
organisation respond to critical incidents in the borough and provide support to
victims and families. Projects that are being delivered and are in progress through
this workstream include:
o

Critical Incident Response: signed off and being implemented currently.

o

Recommissioning of all youth and play services with targets for reducing youth
violence and keeping young people safe.

o

Interventions and support (targeted children and young people offer, including
young adults): Evidence completed by public health to inform interventions; and
work ongoing to implement findings and recommendations.

o

GOMAP panel review: Review ongoing – target dates for completion included
within Terms of Reference and Information Sharing Protocol circulated for
comment -. agreed formal review and consultation with workstream members.

o

Initial discussion in relation to Community “Knife Haven” proposals.

o

Integration of activity with communications workstream highlighted as a priority
for action.

Education and Training led by the Schools Improvement Team: how we work
with schools to protect our young people and increaser their resilience. This also
includes education and training opportunities for young people over 18 and up to
25. Examples of projects that have been developed through this workstream
include:
o

The Black Caribbean Achievement Project has been a significant project
between the Council and the Lambeth Schools Partnership involving 34
schools and based on the work of Professor Feyisa Demie. This has resulted in
an 11% improvement in Key Stage 2 outcomes in the pilot schools in Year 1
and there is indicative reduction in the number of exclusions for this cohort.
This represents a £200,000 investment over two years which will need further
funding if it is to have longer-term impact. This has included Headteacher
coaching, aspiration raising events, behaviour management support,
unconscious bias training and parental engagement activities.

o

The borough’s approach to inclusion will be reviewed; a reviewed approach to
SEND, a reviewed Fair Access Protocol and the Introduction of a Fair Access
Panel. Work will be undertaken to provide a Key Stage 3 therapeutic
intervention.

o

Improve the tracking of young people not in Education Employment and
Training and improve communication and opportunities between the pre and
post 19 NEET team to provide greater continuity of opportunity.

Page 45
OFFICIAL

4.7

There are also two key themes which work across the entire strategy, Community
Engagement & Consultation and Public Health:

4.8

Community Engagement & Consultation puts our communities at the heart of the
strategy development. This includes making sure that young people are involved in the
development and delivery of the work. Only through real co-production can we ensure that
this strategy is effective, embraced by our residents and can deliver for the long term.

4.9

However, this is only the first stage of the work. We are now in the process of developing
the strategy, moving beyond immediate short-term projects to longer term sustained work
based on co-production with communities. Through the community engagement and
participation work, our communities will take a greater role in developing and implementing
the longer-term changes necessary to reduce youth violence in the first instance. We are
currently carrying out some community engagement activity that can help capture local
insight and develop this collaborative approach. However, we know that we need to
improve how we engage and work with our residents and partners and we are going to be
commissioning a partnership of two to three community organisations working in Lambeth
to deliver a community engagement programme. The aim is to have an improved and
effective co-production with all our diverse communities (particularly the BAME and youth
communities) in place to deliver from year 2 of the strategy. This will include the longerterm cultural change and commissioning of services and support.

4.10 Additionally, the Public Health work stream ensures that all of our work is aligned to our
public health goals, that we evaluate the effectiveness of our projects and the strategy,
and that we use our data in the best possible way to identify and support the people who
need us the most.

Developing an Anti-Racist Approach
4.11 One element of the work that must be addressed at every stage is the issue of institutional
racism. We are aware of the disproportionality of violence against young people in
Lambeth, but face challenges in acknowledging the underlying causes of institutional
racism that create these disproportionalities in the first place.
4.12 We are working with the Black Thrive management team to embed an anti-racist approach
in all elements of our work. This is a long-term project to increase our understanding of
racism and the impact it has on our communities. Adopting an anti-racist approach is
fundamentally a different way of looking at how we design and deliver our work. It means
we will intentionally look at every stage of our work from a position of challenge. Rather
than look at the total sum project, every aspect at every step needs to be considered
specifically around racism.

Page 46
OFFICIAL

5

Counter Terrorism

Prevent
5.1

Prevent is one strand of the government’s counter-terrorism strategy, CONTEST, and aims
to reduce the threat to the UK from terrorism by stopping people becoming terrorists or
supporting terrorism. In the revised CONTEST strategy (June 2018), Prevent has three
specific strategic objectives:




Tackle the causes of radicalisation and respond to the ideological challenge of
terrorism;
Safeguard and support those most at risk of radicalisation through early
intervention, identifying them and offering support; and
Enable those who have already engaged in terrorism to disengage and rehabilitate.

5.2

Local authorities have a statutory duty to deliver Prevent work. Section 26 of the Counter
Terrorism and Security Act 2015 places an obligation on specified authorities including local
authorities to have “due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into
terrorism”. This is known as the Prevent Duty.

5.3

The Home Office has released sector-specific statutory guidance in respect of Prevent
delivery. This includes delivery of a multi-agency safeguarding process for those at risk
called Channel, as well as a best practice toolkit for local authorities. This statutory guidance
is expected to be updated in early 2020.

5.4

Lambeth is a Prevent Priority Area and faces several low-likelihood/high-impact terrorismrelated risks. The threat level from terrorism is currently deemed to be SUBSTANTIAL,
meaning an attack in the UK is likely. Since 2017, three terrorist attacks have occurred on
the borders of the borough, and the November 2019 attack on Fishmongers’ Hall highlights
the ongoing vulnerability of targets in central London.

5.5

The most significant threat remains a Lambeth resident becoming radicalised and carrying
out a terrorist attack on the borough or elsewhere in the UK. In addition to the potential loss
of life, such an attack would likely lead to substantial community tension. The risk of Syria
travel appears to have declined, but a Lambeth resident returning from Syria remains a
concern. In addition, as more terrorist offenders are released from prison in 2020, the
radicalisation risks these individuals pose to others will continue to rise.

5.6

Our assessment is that the main routes into radicalisation for residents are through the
influence of family members or friends already involved in extremism; the influence of fellow
inmates in prison, particularly those convicted of Terrorism Act offences; and online
material/contacting extremist recruiters online. The local Prevent response is based on
building the resilience of young people to these influences, and ensuring frontline staff are
aware of the issue and know what to do if they are concerned.

Prevent Action Plan 2018-19
5.7

The statutory guidance issued in July 2015 mandates local authorities to develop a Prevent
action plan, while the best practice toolkit states areas must have “a delivery plan, developed
against an assessment of local risk”. In Lambeth, this plan is overseen by the CONTEST
sub-group, which is chaired by the Chief Executive.

5.8

The Prevent Action Plan for Lambeth was updated twice in 2019 (15/02/19 and 19/09/19)
and was shared with the CONTEST sub-group. It breaks down the Prevent work delivered
in the borough into four streams:

Page 47
OFFICIAL





5.9

Running a collaborative multi-agency Channel process, embedding Prevent practice
within Lambeth’s social care teams, and ensuring relevant frontline staff have
completed Prevent training to the level required by their role;
Building young peoples’ resilience to extremist and terrorist influences through our
work with the borough’s education settings;
Promoting public awareness of Prevent, the positive role community members and
groups can play in tackling radicalisation, and the action being taken in Lambeth to
prevent terrorism; and
Developing and implementing measures to ensure effective responses to a terrorist
incident and having strong policies and procedures in place to respond to extremist
efforts to misuse public venues, attack IT systems or influence commissioning
processes.

Work to deliver the first element of the Prevent Action Plan has continued to focus on
integrating Prevent more closely with safeguarding practice, particularly in Children’s
Services. Training addressing how radicalisation occurs and when referrals should be made
in line with LSCB thresholds continued to be delivered, and bespoke sessions were
arranged for social workers, VAWG teams, and Housing staff throughout 2018-19.

5.10 Building safeguarding relationships also continued, with Prevent staff added to the DIB and
missing/CSE email circulations. Delivery of a diverse multi-agency Channel Panel continued
every month, with VAWG, Housing, and local safeguarding police added to the core
members already attending.
5.11 The Channel panel was visited by observers from the Home Office, Dept. of Health, and
Counter Terrorism Policing in 2019, with Home Office staff highlighting it as an example of
best practice for observers. Lambeth was also chosen by the Home Office to demonstrate
local delivery to a United Nations Inspection team, with inspectors holding a session with
Channel attendees as part of this visit.
5.12 The second element of the Prevent Action Plan is led by the Prevent Education Officer
(PEO). Over 2,500 people were trained in education settings by the PEO between April 2018
and March 2019, while bespoke lessons on extremist use of fake news and resilience to
radicalisation were delivered to young people. The PEO has also continued to help settings
fulfil their ‘Prevent Duty’ and advised on safeguarding concerns, developing an Early Help
Strategy in early 2019 that was presented to the Department for Education as an example
of local best practice. Appendix 2 provides a more detailed review of the outcomes from
work undertaken in schools in relation to the Prevent Duty in Lambeth between September
2018 and August 2019.
5.13 Three Home Office-funded Prevent projects were also delivered in Lambeth schools during
2018-19:






Sixty-three ‘Game On’ workshops were run in 2018-19, reaching 1,544 participants
and meeting the objectives set in the 2018-19 Prevent Action Plan. The workshops
used theatre techniques and discussion to help young people develop the
awareness and knowledge to challenge racism and extreme views.
Five sessions of the St Giles Trust’s ‘BRAVE’ project were delivered in 2018-19,
reaching 1,150 participants and meeting the objectives of 2018-19 Prevent Action
Plan. The workshops addressed the ways in which extremists/gangs try to recruit
young people and how young people can stand up to this process.
Twelve digital resilience workshops were delivered by ParentZone in 2018-19 as
part of a direct grant from the Home Office, reaching 1,782 people (1,750 young

Page 48
OFFICIAL
people and 32 parents). The project offered parents and children practical guidance
and support about staying safe online.
5.14 Work on the third element of the Action Plan was driven through regular engagement with
community groups, including the delivery of five Home Office-funded Community Question
Times on Prevent between December 2018 and July 2019. This activity also included
reassurance work following overseas terrorist attacks, and attendance at a wide range of
interfaith events.
5.15 Terms of reference were approved for a Prevent Advisory Group, and recruitment for an
officer to lead this was completed in December 2019. This was developed in response to
community feedback, as was the funding of parenting workshops by the Home Office. These
were scheduled to run in Q4 2019-20 and are currently underway.
5.16 Members of Lambeth faith communities were also invited to take part in the United Nations
Inspection in October 2019. As part of the visit, a reception was held in the Town Hall, and
the inspection team met faith representatives to discuss their engagement with local Prevent
delivery.
5.17 Work on the final element of the Prevent Action Plan focused on policy. This included
ensuring items were presented to the CONTEST Sub-Group for oversight, editing the
Prevent Self-Assessment following feedback from PWC, and developing a new Prevent Risk
Assessment in line with Home Office best practice guidance. Work was also carried out to
develop a Prevent Partnership Plan, to examine areas for improvement in cross-borough
Prevent working, and to examine Lambeth IT/venue resilience to extremist misuse.
5.18 The Prevent team continued to engage with the Counter Terrorism Local Profile and Prevent
Prioritisation processes, and ensured accurate data was provided to the Home Office for
evaluation purposes. The team also supported local policing, attending the monthly Security
Review Meeting and quarterly faith community briefings.
5.19 In addition to this ‘business as usual’ work, the Prevent team also worked with the Office for
Security and Counter Terrorism (OSCT) on several occasions when the Home Office was
keen to showcase local best practice. This saw Prevent staff attend the US Embassy twice
in 2019 to brief officials, and the Prevent Programme Manager invited to Naples to discuss
Lambeth policy with Italian police, justice officials and local government staff. The PEO also
continued her membership of the DfE’s Prevent Tasking Advisory Group, which identifies
Prevent delivery issues in education and produces policy solutions.
5.20 Lambeth Council was also chosen to host a United Nations inspection examining how UK
Prevent delivery works at a local level, running a morning of roundtables on Prevent
oversight, building resilience in young people, multi-agency safeguarding, and community
engagement. This was seen as a great success by the Home Office, with the Head of
Prevent Areas saying how happy they were to see elected members, senior staff, and
safeguarding teams working together effectively with community members on such a
challenging issue.

Protect (Counter Terrorism)
5.21 Part of the national CONTEST strategy to combat counterterrorism is the Protect agenda.
This focusses on ensuring our public spaces, particularly crowded spaces and iconic sites,
have appropriate physical protection to deter terrorist attack or help minimise casualties
should one occur.
5.22 Lambeth is inner London borough with multiple iconic sites, and Brixton has been the target
of a far-right terrorist attack previously. With the change in attack methodology over the last

Page 49
OFFICIAL
few years and three terrorist attacks taking place just outside Lambeth’s borders, this has
become a priority for Lambeth. As such, although we do not have a formal legal duty to
deliver Protect, we have been working closely with police colleagues to identify and better
protect our vulnerable locations.
5.23 This includes protecting the public areas of the South Bank along our roads and major
attractions, working with TFL and Network Rail on improving pedestrian protection outside
Waterloo Train Station and reviewing other crowded places such as central Brixton for future
work in 2020.
5.24 A new sub-group to manage the Protect agenda is being created that will review all the
boroughs crowded places, and develop a strategy for Lambeth to ensure that all new
developments and plans, and refurbishments of existing places, are as safe as necessary
whilst also maintaining the openness and neighbourhood aesthetic we aspire to.

Page 50
OFFICIAL

6

Violence Against Women and Girls

Strategic overview
6.1

Addressing Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) remains one of the key priorities of
the Council and our elected members. Lambeth is recognised as leading the way on
coordinating the response to VAWG.

6.2

In recognition of this, Lambeth Council has committed to maintaining funding for VAWG
services at the same levels, despite significant financial pressures.

6.3

In 2016 the Safer Lambeth Partnership launched a refreshed VAWG strategy1. This strategy
runs until 2020. Our strategic priorities are Prevention, Provision of Services, Pursuing
Perpetrators and Partnership Working.

6.4

We will launch our next VAWG strategy in 2020 and this will be co-produced with survivors,
practitioners and the community. The co-production and consultation will draw on the
expertise of those who have accessed our specialist services and have lived experience, as
well as targeting those communities that are seldom heard and so often not involved in
decision making.

6.5

The current strategy committed us to building on the approach set out in our first borough
strategy, as this had been effective in driving change. The 2016-2020 strategy
acknowledged new areas of concern to which we needed to respond. This includes the need
for a greater focus on pursuing perpetrators, a need to respond across the partnership to
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE), an increased awareness of the impact of gangs on
associated girls and women, the complexity of intergenerational violence and abuse, and
the rise in online abuse.

6.6

The next strategy will be created within the context of wider policy changes and will ensure
we are aligned with national and regional VAWG strategies. We will use information from
our consultation, available prevalence data, examples of best-practice and asset mapping
to inform its vision, priorities and approach.

Governance
6.7

We have a VAWG Strategy Delivery Group in place, with responsibility for monitoring the
actions set out in the strategy and ensuring that emerging operational issues are resolved.
Members of the Delivery Group co-ordinate, deliver and evaluate impacts through regular
and robust performance management. As well as key statutory sector representation, there
are eight specialist VAWG VCS organisations who are part of this group.

6.8

The VAWG Forum (practitioner led with a membership of over 150 specialist VAWG
practitioners from the statutory and voluntary sector) can escalate to the Delivery Group any
operational issues that are problematic and that cannot be resolved by one agency alone.

6.9

The Delivery Group holds partners to account and reports progress to the Safer Lambeth
Partnership and the Lambeth Safeguarding Children’s Partnership.

Commissioned specialist services

1

You can access the full strategy at: https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/community-safety-and-anti-socialbehaviour/abuse-and-violence/safer-lambeth-violence-against-women

Page 51
OFFICIAL
6.10 In 2018/19, we committed to fund refuge accommodation, the Gaia Centre, specialist
Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) support and specialist sexual violence counselling.
Refuges
6.11 We fund 52 refuge beds, which is the highest number of commissioned refuge beds in any
London borough and twice as many as the London average.
6.12 The provision of refuge beds is a service that is provided across England. It is commissioned
and funded, on the whole, by Local Authorities. What this means in practice is that a victim
of domestic abuse (and their children) should be able to access a refuge bed, subject to
space being available, anywhere in the country regardless of whether they have a local
connection to the area.
6.13 The reason for this is that if a victim needs to leave their home and access emergency refuge
accommodation in the majority of cases it means that it is unsafe (due to the risk of future
violence) to remain in their home and/or in the local area. It is at the point of leaving an
abusive relationship that victims are often at the highest risk of future harm, which includes
being killed. Often victims need to leave their local area, and their connections (including
schools) to stay safe.
6.14 There is a national refuge helpline run by Refuge, and the majority of victims access refuge
beds via this route. Victims can also self-refer and can be referred by a support service.
6.15 The demand for refuge beds is very high, and so in an emergency the victim will go to
wherever there is a vacancy. This could be anywhere in the country.
6.16 In 2018/19 we supported 98 women in our refuge accommodation. The demand on refuge
beds is very high and an additional 195 women and their children were turned away due to
lack of capacity during this timeframe. We have raised this issue at a regional level as the
demand is a concern that needs to be resolved nationally.
6.17 The Council funds the support element for 52 refuge beds for women and their children and
single
women,
with
support
from
the
Ministry
of
Housing,
Communities & Local Government (MHCLG). Due to the high level of demand our beds
have high occupancy rates with very few voids. The refuges are delivered by two providers,
Solace Women’s Aid (SWA also sub-contract part of this to Asha) and Refuge. Out of the
52 beds, 84% (44) of our refuge provision is for BAME women. The table below outlines the
specialist BAME provision that is provided in Lambeth:
Refuge Provider
Solace Women’s Aid

Project
Name
Solas Anois

Solace Women’s Aid Asha
and Asha

Bed
Specialism
Spaces
Irish and Traveller women specialism (NB
10
this is the only refuge with this specialism
in England).
19
South Asian women

Solace Women’s Aid

Emmeline
House

8

Generic provision

Refuge

Refuge

15

Women of African or African Caribbean
descent

Page 52
OFFICIAL
6.18 Over the last three years we have been successful in securing a number of additional
funding streams from central government and other grants. We have used these to top-up
funding for the Gaia Centre, our refuge beds and other work to sustain levels of provision.
6.19 In June 2019, we submitted Lambeth Council’s response to the MHCLG Consultation on the
Future Delivery of Support to Victims and their Children in Accommodation-Based Domestic
Abuse Services. The response was created in partnership with Lambeth Housing and
commissioned refuge providers. The results are in the process of being analysed. Under the
current proposals, a new model of commissioning refuge provision would be implemented
whereby the Greater London Authority would take the lead role. The role of local authorities
in commissioning decisions is not yet clear. This may have significant future impact but is
hopefully a positive step in creating a model for pan-London and sustainable funding for
refuge provision.
6.20 We have submitted an application for funding (£100,000) towards our refuge provision to
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to cover the period 2020-2021
and are awaiting a decision.
The Gaia Centre
6.21 The Gaia Centre supports women and girls over the age of 13 years and men over the age
of 16 years. There is also a support service for children aged 11-18 who have witnessed
domestic abuse. A wide range of support is provided at the Gaia Centre which includes
advocacy for high risk victims, a sanctuary scheme to enable victims to safely remain in their
homes and prevent homelessness, a peer mentoring and volunteering scheme to improve
health and wellbeing and reduce isolation, and group and therapeutic work for victims and
their children to increase recovery.
6.22 From April 2018 to March 2019 the centre received a total of 1,519 new referrals. These
were made up of 87% female referrals, 4% male referrals and >1% transgender referrals
(the remainder were unknown). Of clients who engaged with the service there were 655
related children. The outcomes for the service are extremely positive, with 96% of victims
stating increased feelings of safety, 92% of victims noting an improvement in their quality of
life, and 98% of victims feeling increased confidence in accessing help and support.
6.23 Lambeth Housing continue to fund the Sanctuary Scheme, which is delivered through our
commissioned specialist service, the Gaia Centre. The scheme provides victims of domestic
abuse with enhanced security measures, enabling them to safely remain in their homes and
prevent homelessness. In 2018/19 we supported 129 victims through the Sanctuary
Scheme.
Africa Advocacy Foundation
6.24 The VAWG Strategy includes building on our work so far, across the partnership, on
preventing and responding to Female Genital Mutilation (FGM). In 2018/19 we funded a
specialist local FGM provider, Africa Advocacy Foundation to undertake work in Lambeth.
This has provided training to 100 Lambeth frontline professionals, the recruitment and
training of 21 community champions and 1:1 therapeutic support and case work to 74
women who have undergone FGM.
Rape Crisis South London (RASASC)
6.25 Rape Crisis Centres provide specialist therapeutic support and advocacy services to those
who have experienced rape, sexual violence, or sexual abuse. There are four services in
London and RASASC supports those living in any of the South London boroughs.
6.26 In 2019 we provided funding to RASASC to reduce waiting times for Lambeth residents,
who have experienced sexual violence, to access specialist counselling.

Page 53
OFFICIAL

6.27 RASASC receives the second largest number of referrals (all self-referrals) in South London
from Lambeth residents.

Partnership services
Prevent and Change (PAC)
6.28 In 2017, we were successful in a funding bid for £300,000 to the Home Office VAWG
Transformation Fund for a three-year project focusing on tackling domestic abuse
perpetrators across Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham.
6.29 The Prevent and Change Project is working to ensure that the whole ‘system’ is better
equipped towards managing perpetrators in partnership and provide additional resource to
existing enforcement activities. The priority outcome is to increase the safety and wellbeing
of victims and associated children, and to prevent new and/or further victimisation and harm.
The focus is on how perpetrators are managed across the partnership, supported to change
and/or held to account for their harmful behaviour.
6.30 Sitting alongside the perpetrator intervention are three integrated victim support services,
which make pro-active contact with related victims to offer support, risk management and
safety planning. In Lambeth this is the Gaia centre, in Lewisham this is the Athena service
and in Southwark this is Solace Advocacy and Support Service.
6.31 The service began in July 2018 and is supporting the most prolific perpetrators who reside
in and/or offend in Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham (but who do not ordinarily meet
MARAC threshold). The project is providing interventions to 20 perpetrators per year, per
borough, from 2018 - 2020; 120 in total across the life of the project.
6.32 The PAC Project will conclude in March 2020 but is in the process of being independently
evaluated by the Child & Woman Abuse Studies Unit (CWASU) research team from London
Metropolitan University. This will inform future perpetrator work in Lambeth.
Lambeth Early Action Partnership
6.33 In 2014, Lambeth was awarded £36 million from The Big Lottery to implement a ten-year
programme to bring about sustained change for local people. The programme is called "A
Better Start" and locally is called Lambeth Early Action Partnership (LEAP). The partnership
is led by the National Children’s Bureau. Lambeth Council are one of the key partners. One
element of the LEAP programme was to develop a work strand to provide domestic abuse
support and interventions to parents of children under four years old in the four LEAP wards
(Coldharbour, Stockwell, Tulse Hill and Vassal) within Lambeth. To ensure integration with
the Safer Lambeth strategic VAWG approach, it was agreed that Lambeth Council VAWG
Team would lead the commissioning of this work strand; this includes the delivery of a
preventative group work programme, dedicated case workers and a workforce development
offer.

Safer Communities work
Domestic Homicides Reviews (DHR)
6.34 Two Lambeth Domestic Homicide Reviews were completed in 2019.
6.35 In 2017/18 the Safer Lambeth Partnership began the process of a Domestic Violence
Homicide Review (DHR) 003 in relation to the murder of “Sophia” that occurred in Lambeth
in May 2017. The role of DHRs is to make sure that any lessons are learned locally, and (in
conjunction with other reviews) nationally, to improve practice in order to prevent future
homicides. An independent organisation, Standing Together, performed the DHR on behalf
of the Partnership, and the review was published in March 2019. The VAWG Strategy

Page 54
OFFICIAL
Delivery Group monitors the action plan pertaining to the recommendations in this Review.
This is ongoing and is nearing conclusion.
6.36 In 2018 the Safer Lambeth Partnership began the process of DHR 004 in relation to the
murder of “Elaine” in April 2018. This review was completed in November 2019 and is due
to be presented at the Safer Lambeth Executive in February 2020 for approval. The SLE will
agree the implementation of the ten DHR recommendations and work plan and this is then
sent to Home Office Quality Assurance Group who assess the review. The monitoring of the
action plan will be overseen by the VAWG Strategy Delivery Group.

Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC)
6.37 The Lambeth Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC), which is led by the
Council, is a risk management meeting where professionals share information on high and
very high-risk cases of domestic violence and put in place a risk reduction plan. This is a
significant element of our work and continues to deliver an effective coordinated response
to victims who are at a high risk. In 2018/19 the MARAC supported and worked towards
safeguarding 532 adult victims and their 484 children. This represents a 29% increase in
victim referrals and a 26% rise in impacted children, since the previous year.
6.38 The MARAC’s effectiveness is measured through the “repeat rate”. In 2018/19 30% of cases
discussed at Lambeth MARAC were repeat referrals, an increase of 5% from the previous
year. Where there is a further incident of domestic abuse within a 12-month period, a case
will be referred back into the MARAC. Therefore, it can be shown that for 70% of the cases
referred to MARAC last year, there were no further incidents of domestic abuse.
6.39 SafeLives are the organisation responsible for the development and rigorous quality
assurance of MARACs across England and Wales. SafeLives have provided the current
average repeat victimisation rate for London, which stands at 25% and increases nationally
to 28%. SafeLives have highlighted that a mature MARAC, like Lambeth, is performing well
if it maintains repeat victimisation between 28-40%. This not only recognises that most
victims/survivors experience multiple incidents of domestic abuse, but also demonstrates
that agencies in Lambeth are recognising repeat incidents of domestic abuse and referring
to MARAC.

Lambeth Prostitution Group (LPG)
6.40 The VAWG team also manage the Lambeth Prostitution Group (LPG), a MARAC-style risk
management partnership for those involved in street-based prostitution in Lambeth. The bimonthly partnership aims to prevent homicides, deaths, serious harm and reduce risk to
women in this group whilst also supporting them to exit prostitution.
6.41 In 2018/19 48 cases were discussed at the LPG, demonstrating the demand for a holistic
multi-agency response to support women involved in prostitution.
6.42 This is a 24% decrease in cases discussed from the previous year. This is due to changes
in discussion criteria rather than a reduction in referrals.
6.43 In 2019 the LPG began working in partnership with Fulfilling Lives. Fulfilling Lives Lambeth,
Southwark & Lewisham (LSL) work with people facing multiple disadvantage to offer flexible
and personalised outreach support to help clients navigate health and social care pathways.
Link workers focus on those not accessing services and are supported by an external clinical
psychologist providing clinical consultation and reflective practice. This is providing an
additional level of support to some of the boroughs most vulnerable residents.

Page 55
OFFICIAL

Training
6.44 In 2018/19 367 Lambeth practitioners received training through our open training
programme. In 2017/18 we trained 522 Lambeth practitioners.
6.45 The Lambeth open training programme consists of a range of half and full day classroom
courses covering all areas of VAWG. The core courses provide an introductory overview of
the most prevalent VAWG issues in the borough. Additionally, we offer a range of courses
delivered by, or co-facilitated with, specialist services based on emerging themes and issues
raised by practitioners, research and domestic homicide reviews.
6.46 We measure the effectiveness of the training with a series of short questionnaires given at
the end of each training session as well as measuring short and long-term changes to
practice.

Future developments
6.47 We are currently working with Human Resources and teams across the Council to create
an Employee Domestic Abuse Policy. The policy will provide information about appropriate
support and guidance to managers and staff in responding to disclosures of domestic abuse
from Lambeth employees.
6.48 We submitted the Safer Lambeth Partnership’s response to the proposed Domestic Abuse
Bill, which if enacted into law, may affect future funding and provisions in Lambeth. In the
draft Bill the Government set out both legislative and non-legislative commitments; designed
to promote awareness of domestic abuse, protect and support victims and their families,
transform the justice process, and improve consistency and performance across all local
areas, agencies and sectors. A Domestic Abuse Commissioner has recently been
appointed, who will monitor the response of local authorities, the justice system and other
statutory agencies and hold them to account in tackling domestic abuse.
6.49 The Mayor’s VAWG Fund is providing significant funding and investment over the next two
years in the VAWG area of work across London. The fund is £15 million (2019-2021) over
four thematic areas: maintaining existing investment; sustaining current innovation;
developing grass roots provision; and managing an increase in demand. These funding
areas provide significant uplift of resource and we are working with partners, including the
Mayor’s Office, in the mobilisation and support of these projects.

Page 56
OFFICIAL

7
7.1

Anti-Social Behaviour
The partnerships approach to reducing anti-social behaviour in all its forms is delivered by
several key services across the partnership. Principally these are:
 Public Protection, Assurance and Regulatory Services based in the
Environment Division in Resident’s services
 Neighbourhood policing as outlined in the Police Operational Section (section
2)
 The Housing Anti-social behaviour service focussing on ASB in social housing

Public Protection – Anti Social Behaviour (ASB)
7.2

The council has restructured its main anti-social behaviour services into a new service:
Public Protection, Assurance and Regulatory services. This division combines several
previously separate functions with the aim of delivering an enhanced, single service for all
ASB and related issues.

7.3

The service is committed to a strategy of tackling ASB based on three core principles:





7.4

Consistently high levels of customer service – residents should be able to
get the same high level of service in relation to both noise nuisance and ASB,
with one point of contact for residents
Community based action plans – tacking the root causes of ASB issues in
the community.
Increased visibility – Communities need to be assured that the authority care
about them and are taking an active role in helping to improve their quality of
life and overall resident’s experience. To achieve this, we need more on street
patrols and community engagement.

Public Protection officers deal with an array of issues whilst undertaking their daily duties,
including:
Rough Sleeping

Illegal Street Trading

Environmental Crime

Illegal Gaming

Street Drinking

Modern Day Slavery

Vulnerable Victims

Illegal Traveller
encampments

Noise Nuisance

Anti-Social Behaviour

Unlicensed Music Events

7.5

In 2019 there were 2,499 recorded ASB investigations launched by the Public Protection
team. The vast majority of these related to acts directed at people, disregard for
community or personal wellbeing or the misuse of a public space.

7.6

The Metropolitan Police also received over 7,000 phone calls reporting anti-social
behaviour in 2019. The trends, as expected, the summer holiday months of July and
August were the busiest, reporting around 800 incidents per month.

Page 57
OFFICIAL
7.7

In terms of the breakdown of incidents, ‘rowdy or inconsiderate behaviour’, ‘nuisance
neighbours’ and ‘noise’ are the most common forms of ASB reported. These three
categories account for 73% of all reported ASB in Lambeth in 2019.

7.8

Public Protection also conduct intelligence led partnership operations to tackle various
issues within the borough on a monthly basis. Last year we conducted operations to tackle
the following issues:







7.9

Supporting the safe running of major events
Illegal street trading at the ICC Cricket World Cup around The Kia Oval area
Autumn Nights – operation focusing on crime and disorder issues in Lambeth
Weapons Sweeps
Public Spaces Protection Order enforcement
Abortion Clinic Protest Management

This move to intelligence=led tasking is a key change from previous years. The service
now focusses its resources and tasking in a pro-active manner, based on information from
across the partnership. This ensures we address the most significant issues facing the
borough and deliver the best value for money possible, rather than only reacting to ASB as
it happens and in the aftermath.

7.10 Examples of this pro-active work include the development and delivery of the borough’s
first partnership weapon sweeps in high risk areas, rapid deployment of CCTV to
vulnerable locations, extending the Street Gaming and Street Gambling Public Spaces
Protection Order on Westminster Bridge and working to address modern slavery
associated with street gaming in high footfall areas.
7.11 Public Protection run weekly operations to gather an evidence base and tackle issues
such as; Street Drinking, Street gambling and psychoactive substances in partnership with
The Metropolitan Police, South Bank Employers Group, Lambeth Parks and Partnership
Plus officers.
7.12 To date we have issued over 400 Fixed Penalty Notices, made seven Prosecutions,
identified multiple links to Modern Day Slavery and seized six Pedi-cabs.
7.13 Since 2018 Public Protection have led quarterly multi-agency intelligence-led operations
called Autumn/Spring/Summer/Winter Nights. The aim of these operations is to tackle
borough wide high-profile issues identified through MPS intelligence, and practice linked to
illegal working or breaches of the licensing objectives at licensed premises, this is
achieved using a multi-agency approach. The service works with partners from The Home
Office, Lambeth Licensing and the Metropolitan Police to tackle problem premises and
various levels of ASB activity. Since the operations started there has been a notable
increase in the number of now compliant businesses, as such the service is looking to
increase the volume of these operations in 2020.

Public Protection – Noise
7.14 We have significantly improved our ability to tackle noise complaints for residents in the
last year. We now offer a simple to use, out of hours responsive noise service operating at
key peak times.

Page 58
OFFICIAL
7.15 The service also identifies and tackles issues around vulnerability, unlicensed music
events (UME’s) and undertakes intelligence-led operations, with support from the
Intelligence team. Every quarter the team undertake joint operations at night with
interventions targeted at premises identified from the noise nuisance data, complaints and
customer feedback. This involves staff from Environmental Health, Trading Standards,
Licensing, ASB, the Metropolitan Police and the Immigration Service.

Public Protection Case Study: Unlicensed Music Event
Public Protection received complaints about an UME/ Street Party on a
Lambeth Estate in the height of summer 2019. The Principal on duty conducted
a triage of the call and a dynamic risk assessment was conducted by officer’s
attending the scene. The below is an extract from the officer’s report on the
night:
 At approximately 22:48hrs Public Protection officers attended an UME at
XXXXXXXXXXXX following a call from the police who were on site.
 Upon arrival we identified a large crowd of approximately 50 to 80 young
people gathered in a small square next to XXXXXXXXXX. The square
was in darkness as there were no estate lighting on at the time of
inspection. Officer’s noted some young people were on the street.
Officers could not hear any music playing at the time of our arrival. I
contacted Inspector XXXXXXXXXXX who oversaw the scene, he
informed us that the crowd had been moved on following their
intervention. The crowd had walked through to another location with an
individual who had a music system, including a generator. When officers
tried to approach him, he fled the scene. Following this, music was then
heard to be coming from a property in XXXXXXXXXXX who had their
windows open facing the little square and appeared to be playing to the
crowd. It is thought one or two of the individuals who went into the
address may have been associated with the UME.
 Public Protection officers engaged with the residents of the property. A
man came out of the address refuting allegations of hosting the crowd or
playing music for them. He was argumentative and aggressive, making
allegations about the police. He mentioned he is a friend of the tenant
who was in her own right to play music in her own home, saying it wasn't
her fault if a crowd had gathered to listen to it. He then asked for the
tenant to come and speak to us. A lady came out of the address and
spoke to us, stating “I can play music if I want to and why won't the
Council let the young people party if they want?”. We tried to explain the
implications of such a scenario, but her friend kept interrupting and
arguing. We managed to get them to agree verbally not to play any
music so the crowd could disperse but couldn't be certain they would
stick to their word. I engaged further with Inspector who put a closure
notice in place.
 Public Protection then made the decision to serve a S80 abatement
notice on the tenant based on the likelihood that a nuisance was likely to
occur. Notice was served through the letterbox at 01:25hrs.

7.16 Public Protection uses a multi-tasking approach where interventions are required, which
means multiple issues are managed through a single point of contact for the service user.

Page 59
OFFICIAL
The team’s primary function is to tackle noise-nuisance, but they also identify and
investigate issues around ASB, street population, drinkers, beggars, environmental crime,
highways contraventions, licensing and serious youth violence.
7.17

During the summer of 2019 Public Protection were receiving on average 670 noise reports
per month and during those months the team successfully closed 99% of cases reported.
Public Protection have also been trained to dynamically risk asses every responsive noise
case reported.

7.18 Since the introduction of the noise service the number of UME’s have increased. This has
presented a significant challenge to the service as there has been a worrying trend that
these events are increasingly linked to Serious Youth Violence. In the past eight months
there has been a serious assault on an officer and several near misses. Public Protection
take officer safety very seriously and we continuously implement new ideas and strategies
to improve safety.
7.19 Despite being in its infancy Public Protection were Highly Commended at The Noise
Abatement Society’s John Connell Awards 2019, which were held at the Palace of
Westminster. Public Protection were presented with The John Connell Local Authority
Award.

PartnershipPlus
7.20 The Met PartnershipPlus scheme is a Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) scheme that is
endorsed by the Mayor’s Office for Police and Crime (MOPAC) and allows Local
Authorities to purchase Police Officers at a reduced rate, with the MPS absorbing pension
and support costs.
7.21 The scheme will run until March 2022 and is in place to support mutually agreed local
objectives, to increase visibility and to increase public confidence. Each PartnershipPlus
agreement is independently assessed and approved by the MPS before Local Authorities
can proceed with recruitment.
7.22 For the first time in 2019, Lambeth Cabinet took the decision, based on its manifesto
commitment, to purchase a team of Police Officers consisting of one Sergeant and four
Police Constables, at a cost of £298,000 per annum.
7.23 Since joining the Partnership Plus team have had a significantly beneficial impact on the
capability of PPARS in respect of crime and disorder. In the ten weeks some examples of
the work they have been involved in include problem solving ASB projects relating to parks
and open spaces, operationally leading Lambeth’s first weapons sweeps, tackling ongoing
drug misuse and ASB on Lambeth housing estates, and responding to unlicensed music
events out of hours. The additional Police powers that PartnershipPlus officers bring make
the delivery of the Councils targeted and planned operations far more effective.
7.24 The PartnershipPlus workplan has a number of high-profile crime and disorder projects
that are either in progress or due to begin early in 2020, these include:
 Warrants for rogue traders;
 Problem solving plans for ongoing ASB at Lambeth Housing Estates;
 Problem solving plan to tackle ASB linked to Lambeth’s travelling community;

Page 60
OFFICIAL





Enforcing Lambeth’s Street Drinking PSPO;
Problem solving plan for specific Parks and Open Spaces;
Night-time red-route enforcement plan for Clapham High Street;
Supporting colleagues in street population to get rough sleepers causing ASB
into supported pathways;
 Tactical plans to deal with UME’s as specific intelligence is disseminated;
 Local area plans to deal with reported ASB and drug dealing/misuse; and
 Supporting the delivery of a modern slavery/illegal gaming operation.

CCTV
7.25 Across PPARS, Housing and Parking services the Council operates over 500 cameras
with approximately 450 of these are focused on ASB. For operational and legal reasons,
parking enforcement must remain a separate entity from the anti-social behaviour and
crime focused service.
7.26 CCTV is a valuable asset, and between January 2019 to November 2019 the service
recorded and captured over 7,000 incidents relating to ASB, crime and disorder. The vast
majority of these incidents related to requests to monitor by the Police, an ongoing
investigation, a significant disturbance or a request from the Business Crime Reduction
Partnership.
7.27 There are two CCTV suites in Lambeth, one on Shakespeare Road and one at the Brixton
Police station.
7.28 At present, the Council is conducting a review as to exactly how many cameras it has,
whether they are in the right places, what the technology within the cameras are, and
capability of the circuits on which they operate. A specialist CCTV consultant has been
identified and recruited with a remit to review and re-deign the service, providing the
Council with a route to change.

Vulnerable Victims
7.29 ASB is often linked to residential premises where drugs are being used and sold often
where a vulnerable person is the tenant. In order to support these victims, the PPARS
service manages a multi-agency case conference every month - the High-Risk Vulnerable
Victims group. This supports and protects high risk individuals by bringing the key
agencies together to manage the case and deliver effective solutions that address the root
of the problem and reduce the risk to the victim.
7.30 The Vulnerable Victims MARAC was developed as a way of reducing the risk to vulnerable
residents who are experiencing frequent anti-social behaviour. The MARAC is made up of
several services, organised and led by Public Protection the MARAC representatives are
from the Police, Lambeth Housing, Mental Health and Social Services. This is a way for
agencies to share information and intelligence to better protect those who are unable to
protect themselves, due to disability, mental health, sickness, age or some other
vulnerability. Referrals are received from the agencies mentioned above but also from
housing associations across Lambeth.
7.31 The panel has been running since 2009 and cases are referred by number of different
organisations who have regular contact with service users and residents. The types of

Page 61
OFFICIAL
cases have been referred over the years include drugs, financial/sexual exploitation,
cuckooing, noise nuisance, Bullying/ Harassment organised crime.
7.32 The Vulnerable Victims process has successfully managed 111 high risk referrals in the
last four years. Often these cases can take a long time to resolve, given the complex and
detailed nature of the risk and vulnerabilities. Referrals are made from across the Safer
Lambeth Partnership and can include issues relating to hate crime, mental health and
adult social care.
7.33 Due to organisational restructures leading to a reduction in resources available to the
panel, the turn-around for cases has been slower in 2019. Lower level cases are now
being referred to Public Protection and the panel is dealing solely with high risk vulnerable
adults. As a result, 17 cases have been successfully resolved in 2019, a reduction
compared to the volumes in 2018 and 2019, which tackled 34 and 38 cases respectively.
7.34 Outcomes of the last four years cases show that a high number of cases result in victims
being re-housed. This is not the panel’s original intention, which is to try to keep a victim in
their own environment. Re-housing is only considered as a last resort. A common issue in
a lot of cases is that victims are living in accommodation that is unsuitable for them for
various reasons. These include; a lack of capacity, not being able to maintain the home,
the victim is too vulnerable to protect themselves, physical/ mental deterioration. This
means that more secure accommodation needs to be sought.

Trading Standards
7.35 The Standards team act on behalf of consumers and businesses, advising on and
enforcing laws that govern the way goods and services are described, bought, sold, hired
and rented. The team advise on consumer law, investigating complaints and, where
applicable, prosecuting traders who break the law.
7.36 There are a number of areas where the work of Trading Standards has a real impact on
crime and disorder in Lambeth. Specifically; protecting residents from unscrupulous
traders, restricting the availability of knives to young people, restricting the availability of
alcohol to young people, protecting consumers from unsafe products, and protecting
tenants from rogue letting agents.
7.37 The Council’s Trading Standards team conduct a regular programme of test purchasing for
underage sales of age restricted goods including knives and alcohol to those below the
age of 18. The approach has been reviewed this year so that test purchasing is
undertaken of specific businesses and in specified areas, based on current evidence and
intelligence, with support from the PPARS Intelligence Service. Knife sales test purchasing
operations are carried out where incidents of violence involving knives are highest in the
borough, and to those outlets nearest to where those caught carrying knives or involved in
knife crime live. The aim is to restrict access to knives by young people (including online
purchasing) and to ensure compliance, taking follow-up action against a retailer if an
underage sale is made.
7.38 For example, a national chain was prosecuted by Lambeth Trading Standards for selling a
knife to a 15-year-old at their branch in Waterloo. The prosecution resulted in a £50,000
fine by the Courts. The retailer also made a £20,000 donation to charity and received an
order to pay costs (this case was covered in the national press on 15/11/19).

Page 62
OFFICIAL

Housing Services (Anti-Social Behaviour)
7.39 In October 2019 the structure or Housing Services was reviewed following the restructure
of 2018 which saw the Tenancy Enforcement service centralised under one manager,
Margaret Akinso. To strengthen the team, three additional staff were created – a Senior
Tenancy Enforcement Officer, the senior practitioner within the team, and two Assistant
Tenancy Enforcement Officers who are responsible for managing initial contact and
logging all casework.
7.40 The new structure is outlined below:
Head of Tenancy
Enforcement

Senior Tenancy
Enforcement Officer

Tenancy
Enforcement Officer
x8

Assistant Tenancy
Enforcement Officer
x2

7.41 The team manage all aspects of nuisance and anti-social behaviour as well as
unauthorised occupation and tenancy breaches such as abandonment, unauthorised
alteration and tenancy fraud.
7.42 Between April and November 2019, the team received 1079 cases (37 cases per 1000
properties managed). In addition, the team closed 612 cases of which 96% were closed as
successfully resolved.
7.43 The team take early intervention action to quickly manage casework. This includes:
 Advice and assistance (self-help): 1278 cases
 Written Warnings: 391
 Verbal Warnings: 148
 Interview with perpetrators: 103
7.44 Casework is only escalated for enforcement action where early intervention fails or if the
case is so serious it is merited. Such actions include:
 Injunction: 24 cases
 Undertakings: 2
 Possession Order: 4
 Eviction: 4 (3 included rent arrears)
 Closure Order: 3
7.45 To maximise the effectiveness of their work the team works in partnership with PPARS,
the Police, SLaM, Adult Social Care, Tenancy Support, Homeless Prevention Team and
mental health services.

Page 63
OFFICIAL
Audit trail / Consultation
Name/Position
Lambeth cluster/division or
partner
Cllr Seedat, Cabinet
Jobs, Skills and
Community Safety
(Job Share)
Andrew Travers, Chief Chief Executive
Executive
Simon Messinger,
Metropolitan Police Service
Borough Commander
Ian Howells,
Metropolitan Police Service
Superintendent
Jean-Marc Moocarme, Corporate Resources
Legal Services
Rachel Harrison, AD
Corporate Resources
Finance (Children &
Young People)
Finance Clearance Inbox

Date
Sent
16.01.20

Date
Received

Comments
in para:

15.01.20

21.01.20

15.01.20

22.01.20

No
comments
No
comments

16.01.20

17.01.20

Additional
comments re:
Robbery

16.01.20

21/01.20

No
comments

16.01.20

17.01.20

Amend income
generated from
the Youth
Endowment fund

16.01.20

17.01.20

Provided by
RH

16.01.20

Additional
examples in 4;
formatting

13.01.20

Throughout

(FinanceClearance@lambeth.gov.uk)

Hamant Bharadia,
Financial Services
Wayne Chandai,
Democratic Services
Gary O’Key,
Democratic Services
Andrew Eyres, Chief
Officer
Adela Kacsprzak
Annie Hudson,
Strategic Director
Tony Parker, Director

Corporate Resources

16.01.20

Corporate Resources

16.01.20

Corporate Resources

16.01.20

Lambeth Clinical
Commissioning Group
Head of Service, National
Probation Service
Children’s Services

16.01.20

Children’s Services
Commissioning

09.01.20

Report history
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

16.01.20
09.01.20

17th January 2020
22nd January 2020
No
No
n/a
n/a
Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Police and Justice Act 2007
Appendix 1: Recommendations from Scrutiny
Panel November 2018 - with updates
Appendix 2: Prevent Delivery in Lambeth
Education Settings
Appendix 3: Lambeth Ward-Level Crime and
Disorder 2018-19

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1 – Recommendations from Scrutiny Panel November 2018 Crime and Disorder / Safer Lambeth Partnership – with updates
Item

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

Recommendation / Action
To endorse the Public Health approach to tackling
serious youth violence as set out in the papers but to
recommend that further work be done regarding the
collection of performance information and statistical
analysis to inform, and measure the progress of, the
strategy, on a much broader scale than has traditionally
been the case
To ensure the development of the Public Health model
of tackling youth violence in Lambeth involves the
community at every stage. Examples of how this is being
achieved should be included in the 2019 Safer Lambeth
Partnership report to Overview & Scrutiny

Accepted/
Rejected

Response
Needs assessment is finalised and
attached as appendix to the
Children’s Scrutiny 2020

Accepted

Accepted

To request statistics on the success or otherwise of knife
bins and amnesties, including the number of knife bins in
the borough and how many knives have been recovered

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

To recognise and commend the excellent work done by
members of the community to provide diversionary
activities and support for those affected by, or potentially
at risk of becoming involved in, youth violence, such as
the St Matthews Project and Dwaynamics, and to
encourage the Safer Lambeth Partnership to support
and empower such community-led initiatives, which are
vital to the success of the long term youth violence
strategy outlined, in every way possible.

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

To note the proliferation of agencies engaged in work to
prevent youth violence and request that the SLP seeks
to better coordinate and publicise the services available.

Accepted

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

To request to see the evaluation of the Streatham Early
Help project as soon as this is available.

Accepted

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

To recommend that funding is made available for
preventative/early intervention measures which have
been shown to make a difference in tackling youth
violence, both in terms of the budget setting process and
levering in extra funding from other sources.

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Request passed to police to
respond.
Third sector have been significantly
involved at every stage of the
strategy development, including
workstream design and delivery,
and sit on every programme board.
In the new year the new coproduction commissioned contract
will further embed this approach.
This is an ongoing issue for work in
the borough, and the SLP is
working to engage with all
providers, not just those funded
through Safer Lambeth.
Evaluation circulated. Further detail
on the new approach contained
within the report.
Additional funding has been
allocated for early intervention and
prevention work through the new
Early Help approach, focussing on
high risk areas of Tulse Hill /

Owner

RAG
rating

Summer
2019

Kristian
Aspinall /
Annie
Hudson

G

Ongoing

Kristian
Aspinall /
Annie
Hudson

G

March 2019

Kristian
Aspinall

A

Ongoing

Kristian
Aspinall /
Annie
Hudson

G

Ongoing

Kristian
Aspinall /
Annie
Hudson

A

Summer
2019

Annie
Hudson

G

Ongoing

Kristian
Aspinall /
Annie
Hudson

G

Page 65

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

Significant details included in the
January 2020 Children’s Scrutiny
report

Deadline

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

To note the importance of celebrating the achievements
of the borough’s young people and to better publicise
opportunities for young people to become engaged in
positive civic-focused activities, such as via the Young
Lambeth Cooperative/Youth Council.

Accepted

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

To note the Offensive Weapons Bill currently making its
way through Parliament and, in tandem with this, to
encourage the SLP to work with suppliers to explore
how best to prevent young people obtaining bladed
items.

Accepted

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

That front line staff be kept abreast of developments with
regards to drug-related issues, including illegal drugs,
prescription drugs and ‘legal highs’, in order to better
identify when such issues may be prevalent and report
these via established channels.

Accepted

Accepted

Loughborough Junction / Clapham
Park. Additionally further services
are in the process of being
commissioned, including a young
boys advocate for gender related
violence, an enhanced support
service for people on the edges of
gang violence and schools based
prevention services such as
Growing Against Violence.
Education and Training is one of
our five delivery workstreams, and
one of its main areas of work is with
schools developing and delivering
programmes to improve
engagement in schools. The wide
community involvement is covered
under the co-production element as
referenced above.
Lambeth celebrates young people
success as part of our mainstream
children’s services work. Part of our
schools based work is to encourage
greater young people’s participation
in civic activities.
Trading standards prioritises
underage knife crime sales as part
of their core work. There have been
several successful prosecutions
throughout 2019 against retailers
selling knives, and the team has
also begun prosecutions against
online retailers selling knives as a
new area of work.
More robust information sharing
and training on the changing drugs
markets has been picked up
through the “Disrupt and Divert”
workstream, including information
on the boroughs changing drugs
market. We will be developing a
specific drug market disruption

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

April 2019

Kristian
Aspinall /
Annie
Hudson

G

Ongoing

Annie
Hudson

A

Ongoing

Nigel
Lambert

G

Summer
2019

Kristian
Aspinall /
Annie
Hudson

G

Page 66

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

That more engagement and support work needs to be
done in schools to harness and act on community
intelligence regarding the possession and use of
knives/offensive weapons, and wider issues regarding
youth violence (the committee notes and appreciates the
fact that the new Borough Command Unit model is to
result in an uplift of schools officers, which should assist
with this, but urges the SLP to align such work with
existing programmes and funding models wherever
possible).

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

April 2019

Darren Levy

G

TBC

Scrutiny
Team

A

March 2019

Kristian
Aspinall /
Annie
Hudson

G

March 2019

Kristian
Aspinall

G

strategy in 2020 focussed on
breaking up Lambeth’s drug
markets.

That a clear and easily understood protocol be
developed across partners to support those who are
moved out of the area for their own protection having
been involved in, or affected by, violence (to include a
named lead contact responsible for the move).

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

To recommend that the Children’s Services Scrutiny
Sub-Committee considers whether the
educational/training programmes offered by the Youth
Offending Services are sufficiently targeted, up to date
and meeting clients’ needs.

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (SLP
Performance and
Priorities)

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (SLP
Performance and
Priorities)

To note the concern at the potential for the Prevent
counter-terrorism strategy, and the expectations this
creates of front line professionals such as social workers
and teaching staff, to build barriers and undermine trust
between such staff and those who may be at risk of
radicalisation, and those connected to them, and request
that officers provide further information/evidence to the
committee to explore whether or not such concern may
be justified in Lambeth.

To request a detailed analysis of hate crime figures
(including a breakdown of religious hate crime).

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted
in part

CSSC to consider when
determining future work programme

A detailed report on Prevent
training in schools and education
settings is included as an appendix
the January 2020 Scrutiny Report.
Feedback from schools and social
workers is overwhelmingly positive
on our Prevent delivery, and this
has been recognised by Home
Office & external partners.

Provided
Accepted

Page 67

2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (Serious
Youth Violence)

It has not been possible to develop
a specific protocol for moving
families & victims outside of
Lambeth due to the complexities
and legal difficulties involved and
the nature of the existing reciprocal
arrangements. However, Lambeth
has significantly improved its
processes around emergency
moves for families affected by / at
risk of youth violence and has
moved numerous families out of the
borough in 2019 in response to
incidents or threats. This includes
both the target

Item
2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (SLP
Performance and
Priorities)
2018 Safer
Lambeth Scrutiny
Report (SLP
Performance and
Priorities)

Recommendation / Action
To note the CCG’s vision to improve mental health
services and request an update regarding how this is
progressing, including performance information where
relevant.
To note the difficulties regarding bringing prosecutions
for Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) but to request
details of how many of the 29 cases referred to in the
report were logged as crimes.

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response

Scrutiny Team to explore possibility
of scheduling into formal committee
work programme

UPDATE TO FOLLOW
Accepted

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

TBC

Scrutiny
Team

A

Kristian
Aspinall /
Annie
Hudson /
Helen Lyons

A

Page 68

Page 69

Appendix 2 – Prevent Delivery in Lambeth Education Settings
1. Service delivery for Prevent in Education
This report sets out the outcomes from work undertaken in schools in relation to the Prevent
Duty in Lambeth between September 2018 and August 2019. As set out in the Prevent
Action Plan, Prevent delivery in Lambeth education settings aims to:
-

Build young peoples’ resilience to extremist and terrorist influences through our work
with the borough’s education settings.
Support Lambeth education settings in delivering the Prevent duty and providing support
to Lambeth education settings in understanding Prevent-related issues.
Support the expectations set out by Ofsted and Keeping Children Safe in Education
guidance and support the work of the Lambeth Education teams.

The Prevent team set out to deliver these aims by training teachers to recognise when a
pupil is vulnerable to being radicalised and providing workshops to build the resilience of
young people to radicalisation. It also aimed to ensure schools have embedded Prevent
within their safeguarding policies and processes and assessed the risk of radicalisation to
their pupils.

2. Key outputs
Training


Across the year 44 education settings were trained, with 1,517* teachers receiving
training. This figure does not include the additional bespoke training sessions
delivered which are detailed below.

Projects


“BRAVE” workshops delivered by ex-gang members from St Giles Trust and experts
on radicalisation by Connect Futures to 6 Secondary schools in Lambeth.



“Reveal Theatre” delivered ten workshops to Secondary schools which explored
extreme narratives and misinformation using theatre techniques and games.

Bespoke workshops delivered by the Prevent Team


30 bespoke lessons were delivered across 6 Primary and Secondary schools by the
Prevent team. These were designed and delivered according to specific needs and
concerns raised by the setting and identified through their risk assessments.



Primary school lessons focused on understanding identity, community, extremism
and online resilience.



Primary school assemblies were also delivered focusing on “celebrating difference.”



Secondary lessons focused on understanding fake news, misinformation and
extremism.

*Sample size of 1303 used for data due to missing data sets

Page 70

Advice and guidance



57 visits to schools to discuss Prevent delivery and help with Prevent checklist and
risk assessments.
38 risk assessments and checklists were received.

Other engagement
Throughout the year, the Prevent Team designed a number of other initiatives to
encourage Prevent engagement with schools in Lambeth. Headteachers were invited to
a breakfast briefing on how to Prevent radicalisation through education. The feedback
from the event was positive:
“Informative and thought-provoking, with takeaway actions”.
“It provided a platform in which to share and receive ideas on how we can prevent
our pupils from all forms of radicalisation through a host of early interventions”.
“Extremely informative, with speakers who had knowledge, passion and drive”.
A number of new training programmes were also designed, including a session on
techniques to raise and manage debates in the classroom and a workshop on how to
integrate shared values into the school curriculum.
“Really helpful, good for the team in starting discussions. Will help to challenge
extreme views”.
An in-depth training session specifically for designated safeguarding leads was also
delivered to ensure those staff members understand their additional safeguarding duties.
“The entire presentation was extremely useful. Lydia presented it very effectively”.
“Really informative and enjoyable session”
Schools also received a quarterly Prevent newsletter which included details of
workshops and training opportunities, as well as updates on the changing threat picture.
A number of pages have been set up on the Lambeth School Services website for
schools to access lesson plans, advice and opportunities throughout the year.

3. Key outcomes of training
Before each training session, teachers are given a feedback form to complete before and
after the session. They are required to estimate their level of knowledge before and after the
session, between ‘no understanding’, ‘poor understanding’, ‘fair understanding’, ‘good
understanding’ or ‘excellent understanding’.
a) How do you rate your understanding of the vulnerability factor which can lead
to people being radicalised?
b) How do you rate your understanding of how to notice concerns where
someone may be vulnerable to radicalisation in your day-to-day job?
c) How do you rate your understanding of how to share concerns about people
vulnerable to radicalisation within your day-to-day job.
*Sample size of 1303 used for data due to missing data sets

Page 71

Key findings:


Across all three questions 95-100% of those who started with no or poor
understanding improved by one or more grades by the end of the training.



88-90% of all teachers left the Prevent training with good or excellent knowledge
across all three knowledge questions.



90% of teachers said that their understanding of vulnerability factors that can lead to
radicalisation was either good or excellent after the training session.



88% of teachers said that their understanding of how to notice concerns when
someone might be vulnerable to radicalisation was either good or excellent after the
training session.



90% of teachers said their understanding of how to share concerns about people
who are vulnerable to radicalisation was either good or excellent after the training
session.

Training and referrals
There is a positive correlation between teachers being Prevent trained and the number of
referrals received by the Prevent team.
Value added measured by starting knowledge
Vulnerabilities
 Of those who started with no or poor understanding of vulnerability factors, 100%
increased by one or more grades.
 Of those who started with fair or good understanding of vulnerability, 61% increased
by one or more grades.
Recognising signs
 Of those who started with no or poor understanding of how to recognise signs, 100%
increased by one or more grades.
 Of those who started with fair or good understanding of how to recognise signs, 62%
increased by one or more grades.
Making a referral
 Of those who started with no or poor understanding of how to make referrals, 95%
increased by one or more grades.
 Of those who started with fair or good understanding of how to make referrals, 56%
increased by one or more grades.
General value




61% of applicants said their understanding of vulnerability factors that can lead to
radicalisation increased by one or more grades.
64% of applicants said their understanding of how to notice concerns when someone
might be vulnerable to radicalisation increased by one or more grades.
52% of applicants said their understanding of how to share concerns about people
who are vulnerable to radicalisation increased by one or more grades.

*Sample size of 1303 used for data due to missing data sets

Page 72

4. Qualitative feedback
121 teachers left comments on their feedback forms (10% of participants). Of the 121 who
left comments, 98 were positive (80%).
Most common words used in the comment section of the feedback forms were “informative”,
(21% of comments included this word) “helpful” (9%) “relevant” (9%) and “interesting”, (9%).
“I believe that this course has provided useful information but it's a subject that does
need more focus more often due the current situation in the community and up to
date information and resources can be extremely useful”.
“Thank you very informative and taking awareness well away from stereotypes”.
“This was a useful and informative discussion, well delivered and discussion was
facilitated and delivered with skill. Thank you!”
Most negative comments were made in relation to the Home Office videos used, which some
teachers felt encouraged stereotypes: “The video "case studies" seem to focus on
families from "broken families". A more diverse set of scenarios might be useful”.
There were also requests for more specific case studies to different settings and across
different types of extremism. The training includes two videos; one Islamist and one Far
Right.
One teacher who was trained went on to become a Prevent Education Officer for Newham,
stating in her interview that she was inspired to do so by the training session.
5. Lessons learned and aims for future delivery
The training for 2019/2020 will incorporate local case studies from different setting types to
ensure the examples are relevant and bespoke to each setting. Including local case studies
also ensures that stereotypes are not encouraged, as the material is based on real events.
Scanning, inputting and analysing data for training is time consuming and it is suggested that
future evaluation could be automated using an online form.
A number of schools have requested “top-up” training to ensure staff remain vigilant in their
Prevent duties. In order to sustain the continued demand from schools there will be central
training sessions arranged for new teachers to attend further training.
Training in 2019/2020 will continue to reflect the changing threat picture of terrorism and a
series of lectures on specific key areas will be offered for those whose knowledge is already
high. For example, a workshop on how the Far Right use humour online to radicalise young
people will be developed for parents, pupils and teachers.

*Sample size of 1303 used for data due to missing data sets

Appendix 3: Lambeth Ward-Level Crime and Disorder 2018-19

Non-Domestic Abuse VWI Offs
Lambeth
Wards
Bishop's
Brixton Hill
Clapham
Common
Clapham
Town
Coldharbour
Ferndale
Gipsy Hill
Herne Hill
Knight's Hill
Larkhall

Prince's
St Leonard's
Stockwell
Streatham Hill
Streatham
South
Streatham
Wells
Thornton
Thurlow Park
Tulse Hill
Vassall
Total

Lambeth
Rank
(volume)

201617

201718

201819

244
149

206

221

15.57%

166

181

81

62

199
367
184
102
133
97
206
210
147
140
103
83

Violence Against the Person
201617

201718

201819

-11.41%

786
551

833
613

944
660

76

23.46%

336

304

198

179

0.50%

361

340

1.63%

218

171

-18.48%

108

88

-5.88%

136

123

-2.26%

78

82

19.59%

191

176

7.28%

221

202

-5.24%

128

124

12.93%

130

131

7.14%

121

122

-17.48%

83

96

0.00%

625
1225
686
518
551
431
701
727
568
568
449
425

73

68

50

6.85%

83
43
86
107
120

69

59

16.87%

35

41

18.60%

92

97

-6.98%

115

107

-7.48%

90

94

2876

2760

2957

%
change
from
2017-18

TNO Offs
201617

201718

201819

13.33%
7.67%

3245
1791

3333
1933

3849
1935

330

8.55%

1264

1269

601
1213
705
518
532
405
686
764
564
615
514
374

643
1216
686
510
553
425
648
741
514
648
486
428

6.99%
0.25%
-2.70%
-1.54%
3.95%
4.94%
-5.54%
-3.01%
-8.87%
5.37%
-5.45%
14.44%

2373
3665
2767
1263
1680
1345
2050
2327
1847
1850
1432
1197

319

337

304

-9.79%

25.00%

409
224
416
465
497

359
200
431
482
478

367
212
433
505
501

2.74%

1147
7

1152
8

1175
4

2nd out of 33 boroughs

Burglary in a Dwelling
%
change
from
2017-18

201617

201718

201819

15.48%
0.10%

62
161

46
163

69
149

1272

0.24%

91

98

2530
3583
2640
1287
1634
1178
1998
2406
1790
1811
1408
1188

2498
3507
2425
1198
1812
1160
1928
2393
1806
1934
1451
1338

-1.26%
-2.12%
-8.14%
-6.92%
10.89%
-1.53%
-3.50%
-0.54%
0.89%
6.79%
3.05%
12.63%

100
83
136
80
168
85
136
111
61
95
68
107

1023

1292

1160

-10.22%

2.23%
6.00%
0.46%
4.77%
4.81%

1140
815
1326
1518
1582

1032
711
1374
1477
1566

1131
724
1315
1468
1435

1.96%

3750
0

3744
0

3773
9

3rd out of 33 boroughs

%
change
from
2017-18

Theft Person Offs
%
change
from
2017-18

201617

201718

201819

50.00%
-8.59%

371
101

424
94

438
88

3.30%
-6.38%

131

33.67%

63

46

45

-2.17%

125
118
131
95
157
96
129
118
69
125
80
132

134
129
130
89
165
93
156
104
110
133
86
151

7.20%
9.32%
-0.76%
-6.32%
5.10%
-3.13%
20.93%
-11.86%
59.42%
6.40%
7.50%
14.39%

207
362
308
23
57
19
91
149
103
71
53
21

255
342
363
14
47
14
114
152
91
70
47
20

206
322
316
15
51
18
97
126
119
80
50
21

-19.22%
-5.85%
-12.95%
7.14%
8.51%
28.57%
-14.91%
-17.11%
30.77%
14.29%
6.38%
5.00%

65

93

96

3.23%

20

23

24

4.35%

9.59%
1.83%
-4.29%
-0.61%
-8.37%

73
103
131
97
100

112
89
140
118
126

113
107
154
137
114

0.89%
20.22%
10.00%
16.10%
-9.52%

30
13
20
26
79

24
12
31
33
40

20
10
23
25
37

-16.67%
-16.67%
-25.81%
-24.24%
-7.50%

0.80%

2113

2360

2550

8.05%

2187

2256

2131

-5.54%

4th out of 33 boroughs

5th out of 33 boroughs

6th of out 33 boroughs

Page 73

Oval

%
change
from
2017-18

Appendix 3: Lambeth Ward-Level Crime and Disorder 2018-19

Serious Youth Violence
Lambeth Wards
Bishop's
Brixton Hill
Clapham Common
Clapham Town
Coldharbour
Ferndale
Gipsy Hill
Herne Hill
Knight's Hill
Larkhall
Oval

St Leonard's
Stockwell
Streatham Hill
Streatham South
Streatham Wells
Thornton
Thurlow Park
Tulse Hill
Vassall
Total

Lambeth Rank (volume)

2018-19

39
23
25
17
52
27
18
13
10
18
31
21
13
19
15
9
27
10
20
36
21

24
14
10
6
25
15
15
14
12
21
15
13
13
13
6
5
14
3
11
21
18

2016-17

2017-18

3
6
5
1
15
6
6
8
5
8
5
8
6
6
8
10
2
5
6
13
6
138
464
288
2nd out of 33 boroughs

1
7
10
6
15
3
12
3
3
11
8
11
2
8
4
2
9
2
8
13
9
147

2016-17

2017-18

2016-17

Gun Crime Offs
2017-18

3
1
3
6
7
6
5
10
5
1
6
1
15
15
15
6
3
6
6
12
6
8
3
8
5
3
5
8
11
8
5
8
5
8
11
8
6
2
6
6
8
6
8
4
8
10
2
10
2
9
2
5
2
5
6
8
6
13
13
13
6
9
6
138
147
138
3rd out of 33 boroughs

1
7
10
6
15
3
12
3
3
11
8
11
2
8
4
2
9
2
8
13
9
147

2016-17

3
6
5
1
15
6
6
8
5
8
5
8
6
6
8
10
2
5
6
13
6
138

2017-18

2018-19

Knife Crime Offs

% change from 2017-18

1
1
7
9
10
8
6
6
15
19
3
5
12
9
3
7
3
10
11
9
8
7
11
11
2
1
8
8
4
7
2
7
9
5
2
3
8
6
13
11
9
5
147
154
1st out of 33 boroughs

0.00%
28.57%
-20.00%
0.00%
26.67%
66.67%
-25.00%
133.33%
233.33%
-18.18%
-12.50%
0.00%
-50.00%
0.00%
75.00%
250.00%
-44.44%
50.00%
-25.00%
-15.38%
-44.44%
4.76%

2016-17

50
33
20
15
89
30
42
39
29
32
50
29
41
37
19
20
15
12
20
44
37
703

2017-18

2018-19

% change from 2017-18

62
40
38
32
25
24
33
23
95
70
50
35
39
28
33
36
22
22
41
36
45
29
37
29
29
34
35
28
20
26
18
13
34
19
14
9
20
23
42
38
42
24
774
618
3rd out of 33 boroughs

-35.48%
-15.79%
-4.00%
-30.30%
-26.32%
-30.00%
-28.21%
9.09%
0.00%
-12.20%
-35.56%
-21.62%
17.24%
-20.00%
30.00%
-27.78%
-44.12%
-35.71%
15.00%
-9.52%
-42.86%
-20.16%

Page 74

Prince's

2017-18

Total Drug Offs

Page 75

Agenda Item 4

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 30 January 2020
Report title: 2019-20 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for the Voluntary Sector, Partnerships and Community Safety: Councillor
Donatus Anyanwu
Report Authorised by: Director of Legal & Governance: Alison McKane
Contact for enquiries:
Gary O’Key, Senior Democratic Services Officer,
gokey@lambeth.gov.uk

Legal & Governance; 020 7926 2183,

Report summary
This report sets out the committee’s draft work programme, provides an update on and record of actions
or recommendations arising from previous meetings, and provides councillors with information relevant to
the management of the committee.
Finance summary
There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The work
programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within the Legal &
Governance Directorate.
Recommendations
1.
2.

That the work programme as drafted and the status of actions be noted (Appendix 1).
That the draft Terms of Reference for the proposed Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee
(JHOSC) with the London Borough of Southwark on the reconfiguration of Lambeth Hospital Mental
Health Inpatient Services be noted (Appendix 2).

Page 76
1.
1.1

Context
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) is responsible for overseeing and scrutinising the
whole range of the Authority’s functions and responsibilities, as well as other public service providers’
work and its impact on the local community. The committee’s remit extends to all matters which
impact on the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of those who live, work, study or use
services in the borough.

1.2

OSC also exercises the council’s statutory scrutiny functions in relation to health, and crime and
disorder. The committee has responsibility for the review and scrutiny of matters relating to the
planning, provision and operation of health and related services in Lambeth (and any substantial
variation thereof) in accordance with the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and relevant regulations.
The committee is also the borough’s designated ‘Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee’ in
accordance with the Police and Justice Act 2006 and has responsibility for scrutinising the work of
the Safer Lambeth Partnership.

1.3

At the AGM on 24 April 2019, Council agreed the committee membership and meeting dates for the
2019/20 municipal year. Further information can be found on the Council’s website at:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=113

1.4

The Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee (CSSC) established in April 2017 is continuing in
2019/20, meeting four times over the course of the year. The Chair of CSSC, Councillor Lucy
Caldicott, also sits on OSC in order to ensure coordination of work between the two bodies, eliminate
any potential duplication and feed in findings from CSSC into OSC, and vice versa, where relevant.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is invited to consider its work programme at each meeting.
Although some flexibility needs to be retained to enable items to be added at relatively short notice,
planning the committee’s work programme assists in the commissioning of reports and helps to
ensure that planned work is considered in a timely manner.

2.2

The committee’s draft work programme and action monitoring table is attached at Appendix 1. The
work programme is updated following completion of any actions or recommendations arising or
timetabling of new items. Only those actions which are amber or red rated from the 2018/19 round
of meetings are included. The work programme should be monitored at each meeting to ensure that
previous actions and requests have been completed in full.

2.3

Overview & Scrutiny Committee is continuing the same approach to its meetings in 2019/20 as in
the previous municipal year, whereby meetings will have lead agenda items but a portion of each
meeting will also be retained to take updates on themes of ongoing or particular interest or concern
in order to ensure a flexible approach. Indicative lead items are outlined in Appendix 1.

2.4

The 30 January meeting will be the annual scrutiny of the Safer Lambeth Partnership, as referred to
above (para. 1.2). Separately, the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee is due to scrutinise
the Serious Youth Violence strategy as part of its 23 January meeting as this falls within the subcommittee’s remit, though OSC members are to be invited to attend in order to ensure appropriate
coordination of the work of the two committees in discharging their community safety scrutiny
responsibilities.

2.5

The meeting to be held on 26 March 2020 is provisionally scheduled to consider the Homes for
Lambeth (HfL) Business Plan alongside an update on the status of the recommendations made in
relation to HfL at the OSC meeting of 6 June 2019. The Draft Employment & Skills Strategy and

Page 77
related Jobs For All Scrutiny Commission action plan update may also be considered at the same
meeting.

2.6

Scrutiny Commissions
All proposals for scrutiny commissions should be submitted to the Democratic Services Team and
will be considered by the OSC Chair and Vice Chairs in the first instance. Councillors submitting a
proposal for a commission are asked to provide outline information using the commission scoping
template. Commissions can only be progressed when adequate resource has become available in
the Democratic Services Team.

2.7

A Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) is established across the six south east London
boroughs to scrutinise the work and consider proposals arising from the NHS SEL programme ‘Our
Healthier South East London’ (OHSEL). OHSEL is the NHS Sustainability and Transformation Plan
(STP) for south east London aiming to improve the health of people in the region, reduce health
inequalities and deliver a healthcare system which is clinically and financially sustainable. Eleven
formal meetings of the JOSC have been held so far.

2.8

Cllr Danny Adilypour (OSC Vice Chair leading on Health) and Cllr Philip Normal (CSSC member)
are the Lambeth representatives of the OHSEL JOSC. At the 26 September 2018 JOSC meeting
Cllr Normal was appointed Vice Chair of the committee.

2.9

In late 2019 a service change proposal was received from NHS Lambeth Clinical Commissioning
Group and their provider, South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM) regarding the
potential reconfiguration of mental health inpatient services at Lambeth Hospital; specifically the
transfer of one psychiatric intensive care unit (PICU) and four acute wards to a new facility on the
Maudsley Hospital site, located in the London Borough of Southwark. Following conversations with
commissioners and colleagues in Southwark it was decided that this proposal amounts to a
substantial reconfiguration proposal covering more than one local authority area (in accordance with
the Local Authority (Public Health, Health & Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations
2013) and, as such, it is proposed that a Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC)
between the London Boroughs of Lambeth and Southwark be established to scrutinise the plans.

2.10 Work is underway to determine the membership, Terms of Reference and administrative
arrangements for the JHOSC, which is expected to hold its first meeting in February 2020. In
accordance with the Constitution (Part 2, Section 5), the Director of Legal and Governance is
authorised to agree these under delegated authority, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chairs
of OSC. The Draft Terms of Reference of the JHOSC are attached at Appendix 2 for the committee
to note.
2.11 At the OSC meeting held on 12 July 2018 the committee agreed to establish a scrutiny commission
aimed at complementing the council’s Events Strategy review by exploring was of maximising
community benefits via major commercial events. The commission has now completed its work and
presented its final report to Cabinet on 13 January.
2.12 Owing to the completion of the Events Commission, resources are available in the Democratic
Services Team to support a new scrutiny commission. The overwhelming preference from Members
has been for a commission to be established to support the Council’s climate change ambitions.
Initial discussions are taking place with a view to determining an appropriate scope.
2.13 The table included in Appendix 1 summarises the status of all current commissions.
Borough Plan and Forward Plan

Page 78
2.14 In considering its future work programme and in agreeing commissions the committee may wish to
take into account the Council’s priorities as outlined in the report Lambeth’s Borough Plan Review,
which was presented to Cabinet on 22 July 2019. This builds on the 2016 Borough Plan and sets
out four strategic priorities aimed at creating an economically, socially and environmentally
sustainable borough, namely: Enabling growth and development in the borough; Using the benefits
of that growth to build community resilience; Reform the way we commission and deliver services
with our partners to provide and promote care and independence; and Making Lambeth a place
where people want to live, work and invest.
2.15 The Forward Plan lists all key decisions that the Council (including the Health and Wellbeing Board)
will take over the coming months. A key decision is defined as an executive decision which will:
(1) Require an amendment to the Community Plan Outcomes Framework or require a
recommendation to Council to amend the Budget and Policy Framework; and/or
(2) Result in the local authority incurring expenditure, raising income or making savings in excess of
£500,000; and/or
(3) Have a significant impact on:
(a) communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in Lambeth; or
(b) wellbeing of the community or the quality of service provided to a significant number of people
living or working in an area; or
(c) communities of interest
2.16 The plan is therefore a useful tool for identifying forthcoming decisions where the committee might
add value. The Forward Plan can be found at:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=702&RP=137
3.
3.1

Finance
There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The
work programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within the Legal
& Governance Directorate.

4.
4.1

Legal and Democracy
There are no legal implications, but advice on specific work programme items may be provided in
the future.

4.2

There are no further democratic implications arising from this report.

5.
5.1

Consultation and co-production
All members of the council are entitled to suggest items for scrutiny work programmes in accordance
with the council’s scrutiny procedure rules (Constitution Part 3, Section 6). Suggestions are also
invited specifically from scrutiny members as part of their community leadership role and from
members of the public. The council’s website includes a form for the submission of suggestions and
for public notice questions.

6.
6.1

Risk management
None.

7.
7.1

Equalities impact assessment
An equalities impact assessment of the work programme has not been undertaken. Reports
commissioned by the committee will be expected to address any equalities issues. Any
recommendations arising from commissions will have equalities implications considered at the
drafting stage.

Page 79
8.
8.1

Community safety
None.

9.
9.1

Organisational implications
None.

10. Timetable for implementation
10.1 See Appendix 1.

Audit Trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Liz Atkins

Lambeth
directorate/
department or partner
Chair, Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
Legal & Governance
Finance & Investment

Alison McKane, Director
Nisar Visram, Assistant
Director Corporate
Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal Legal & Governance
Services
Jacqueline
Pennycook, Legal & Governance
Democratic Services
Christian Scade, Deputy Legal & Governance
Democratic
Services
Manager

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments
in para:

10.01.20
10.01.20
10.01.20

10.01.20
10.01.20

20.01.20

20.01.20

Section 3 &
Finance
Summary
10.01.20 & 10.01.20 & Section
4;
20.01.20
22.01.20
2.9-10,
Appendix 2
10.01.20
2.9-10
and
Appendix 2

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
N/A
Report deadline
20.01.20
Date final report sent
22.01.20
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential No
accompanying report?
Key decision report
No
Date first appeared on forward plan
N/A
Key decision reasons
N/A
Background information
Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 2016-2021
Lambeth’s Borough Plan Review (and Appendix)
Forward Plan of Key Decisions
Lambeth Council Constitution 23.01.19
Appendices
Appendix 1: OSC Work Programme 2019/20
Appendix 2: Draft Terms of Reference for
Reconfiguration of Lambeth Hospital Mental Health
Inpatient Services Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 81
APPENDIX 1
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2019-20 WORK PROGRAMME
Date

Meeting
type

6 June 2019

Scheduled

Items/Topics



10 July 2019

Scheduled


17 Sept 2019

Scheduled


13 Nov 2019

Scheduled


30 Jan 2019

26 March 2019

Scheduled

Scheduled



Homes for Lambeth
-

Homes for Lambeth Update

-

Borough Plan Update

Health & Social Care
-

Lambeth Together

-

Adult Social Care

-

Annual Public Health Report

Contracts & Procurement
-

Design of Housing Services After 2020

-

Contract Management: Waste and Street
Cleansing

Budget
-

November Finance Planning and Medium Term
Strategy Report 2019 to 2024

-

Draft Growth Strategy

-

Events Scrutiny Commission Draft Report

Crime and Disorder
-

Safer Lambeth Partnership Performance and
Priorities

-

Lambeth Hospital Redevelopment (Provisional)

Homes for Lambeth Update inc Business Plan
(Provisional)

OUTSTANDING ITEMS




Jobs For All Commission: 2nd action plan update due March 2020
Accessibility of Council Digital Services Commission: 2nd action plan update due July 2020
Events Commission: 1st action plan update due July 2020

Scrutiny Commissions

Page 82
(More information on current commissions is contained in the OSC work programme report)
Title/Proposal
Joint Health Overview
& Scrutiny Committee

Status
In progress.

Co-Chairs/Lead Member(s)
Cllr Danny Adilypour &
Cllr Philip Normal

‘Our Healthier South
East London’
Concluded. Final report presented to
Cabinet in June 2018. First action plan
update March 2019; second update early
2020

Former Cllr Matt Parr &

Concluded. Final report presented to
Cabinet in March 2018. First action plan
update 30 Jan 2019, second update early
2020

Former Cllr Marsha de
Cordova &

Maximising Benefits
from Events

Concluded. Final report presented to
Cabinet on 13 Jan 2020. Action plan
updates provisionally scheduled for July
2020 and July 2021.

Cllr Mary Atkins

Climate Change

Scoping.

TBC

Jobs For All

Accessibility of Council
Digital Services

Cllr Mary Atkins

Cllr Christopher Wellbelove

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Action Monitoring
30 January 2019: Transport / Digital Accessibility
Item

Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

To note and endorse the focus in the Transport Strategy
on areas of high deprivation and urge officers to actively
explore innovative solutions regarding bike storage,
particularly for children (for example, by using/converting
old pram sheds)

To endorse efforts to tackle rat running and reduce traffic
and pollution around schools, and request sight of the
Transport Strategy Implementation Plan when this
becomes available to see more detail on how these and
other measures are to be taken forward

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Response
The locations chosen for new
cycle hangars remain prioritised
according only to the number of
requests that the council has
received. Places in on-street
cycle-hangars remain fixed-price,
regardless of where they are, or
whether the space is to store a
child’s or adult’s cycle. A trial of
heavily subsidising the parking of
children’s bikes in cycle-hangars
started in June 2019 (info on
which has been circulated to
members). A new policy on cycle
parking on the council’s Housing
estates is scheduled to be
considered by the Cabinet
Member on June 2019.
Furthermore the school travel
team have trialled a project
installing children’s hangers on
estates. The use of these hangars
is controlled by local schools who
have pools of bikes to lend for
short to long term periods.
Transport Strategy
Implementation Plan (TSIP) now
published:

https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/site
s/default/files/201947%20Lambe
th%20Implementation%20Plan%
202019%20FINAL.pdf

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Completed

Andrew
Burton /
Suzy
Harrison

G

Complete

Simon
Phillips /
Andrew
Burton

G

Complete

Simon
Phillips

G

Page 83

Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

Recommendation / Action

TSIP published:
Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

To ensure that a robust framework is put in place for
monitoring progress against the Transport Strategy
objectives and associated Implementation Plan, to include
targets for emissions and carbon neutrality

Accepted

https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/site
s/default/files/201947%20Lambe
th%20Implementation%20Plan%
202019%20FINAL.pdf

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Accepted

Officers are working with TfL and
other boroughs to identify survey
requirements. Subject to funding,
these to take place by March
2020.

March 2020

Simon
Phillips

A

Accepted

Officers met with TfL recently and
they have confirmed that a
scrappage scheme, targeted at
low income car user is in place
and available to Lambeth
residents and businesses.

Complete

Simon
Phillips

G

To ensure that the business community is consulted on
impacts to small businesses of the ULEZ

-

Action for TfL

That the Transport Strategy be amended to include
guidance on motorcycle parking provision and criteria for
interested residents

-

Item

Recommendation / Action

Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

To support the work being done to explore the feasibility
of introducing a workplace parking levy in the borough and
request to be kept updated throughout the evidence
gathering and decision making process

Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy
Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy
Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update

To endorse the work being done to combine and broaden
enforcement functions and request that the
outcomes/learning from the two week pilot referred to be
shared with the committee when available
To urge officers to take measures to increase awareness
of the scope and parameters of the enforcement service.
This should include clear guidance on the council’s
website regarding enforcement functions, processes and
appeal procedures
To note and welcome the intention to step up enforcement
of engine idling and to ensure council officers and
contractors lead by example in this regard

To request that a clearer distinction be made for people
opting in to communications via MyLambeth between
transaction-related information and council news, and
ensure that such communications comply with the
Council’s data protection obligations

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response

This is covered by the Local Plan
process. Amendments to the
Local Plan have been drafted and
will be subject to consultation in
October 2020.
Our enforcement provider,
APCOA, are now delivering a
broader range of enforcement
functions.
Plans to improve guidance on the
website have been incorporated
into our 2019/2020 Service Plan

This work forms part of our
2019/2020 Service Plan. Work
has already begun to look at how
council officers and contractors
can lead by example by looking at
staff parking and CCTV
operations
2 parts:
(i) Communications colleagues
will be asked to immediately
desist using the MyLambeth
mailing list for items not relating to
transaction.

Oct 2020

Simon
Phillips

A

Dec 2019

Neil Fenton

A

Ongoing

Neil Fenton

A

Mar 2020

Neil Fenton

A

July 2020

Matt
Cooper

A

Page 84

Equality Streets
Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update
Equality Streets
Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update
Equality Streets
Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update

To express concern at the potential effect of the Ultra-Low
Emission Zone (ULEZ) on low income groups and request
further information regarding the detail of the scheme,
including any accompanying impact assessments, as and
when obtained from Transport for London

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

July 2020

Wayne
Chandai

A

(ii) The upcoming MyLambeth
replacement mailing list will be
held separately from any
promotional software or mailing
lists, and the registration process
will make this clear, while also
providing an optional ‘opt-in’ on
council news
To request a further update on recommendation 17
(workplace assessments for new staff), specifically in
relation to the new intake of councillors following the May
2018 local elections

Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update
Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update

Reinforcing recommendation 16, to urge officers to work
with voluntary sector organisations and interest groups in
the borough to monitor progress and provide feedback on
digital development in Lambeth, via ‘mystery shopping’
and other means as appropriate
To ensure the forthcoming Digital Strategy is
accompanied by a comprehensive performance
monitoring regime including appropriate KPIs in order that
progress and achievement can be properly assessed

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Will form a part of the upcoming
digital strategy, further detail to be
provided when that programme is
fully defined

Will form a part of the upcoming
digital strategy, further detail to be
provided when that programme is
fully defined

July 2020

Matt
Cooper

A

July2020

Matt
Cooper

A

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

March 2020

John
Bennett

A

14 March 2019: Employment & Skills
Item

Lambeth Labour
Market Review

Recommendation / Action

To request an evaluation of the Work and Health
programme, including details of the numbers of people
enrolled and outcomes secured by participants

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
An independent evaluation of the
Work and Health Programme has
been commissioned by Central
London Forward. Interim findings
from this evaluation are not
expected until at least March
2020 but can be shared with the
Committee when available. In the

Page 85

Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Action Plan
Update

Item

Jobs For All
Scrutiny
Commission

To commend the positive work that has been done in
response to the commission’s recommendations but to
request that more data be included in the next update
report in order to enable the committee to measure the
success of the measures being taken
To request that the Council revisits the decision not to
implement Local Multiplier 3 (cf recommendation 12) as a
means of systematically measuring social value. At a
minimum this should include an appropriate officer
undertaking the training course referred to and conducting
an evaluation of the benefits and drawbacks of introducing
LM3

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
meantime, officers continue to
monitor the performance data
from the programme to ensure
targets are being met. Otherwise
there are no resources currently
available to gather more in-depth
evidence on this topic at a
borough level, and the council will
need to draw on information
available from regional and
national sources.
A further update will be provided
to the Committee at the meeting
in March 2020. Officers note the
request for further data in the next
update.
This request was discussed with the
Cabinet Member and agreed initial
step to adopt the Responsible
Procurement policy as soon as
possible and then monitor. The
13/5/19 Responsible Procurement
Cabinet report was specifically
updated to state:
“2.7 Progress against the priorities will
be monitored and reviewed regularly
to ensure progress. The Council will
also continue to monitor
developments around responsible
procurement Including alternative
approaches to defining and
measuring social value and will
develop Lambeth’s Responsible
Procurement Policy and approach in
line with the Council’s Borough Plan
and with best practice.”

6 June 2019: Homes for Lambeth / Borough Plan

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

March 2020

John
Bennett

A

A
April 2020

Rachel
Willsher

Page 86

Jobs For All
Scrutiny
Commission

Recommendation / Action

Item

Homes for
Lambeth Review

Homes for
Lambeth Review

That the need for robust ongoing scrutiny and oversight of
Homes for Lambeth as it continues to evolve be
highlighted. This should include future reports back to
OSC (as and when requested by the committee) and
regular reports to Corporate Committee regarding audit,
risk management approach and risk monitoring

That HfL conduct regular audits of how other comparable
boroughs’ wholly owned companies are performing and
use this to inform future decisions on HfL’s structure and
ways of working. It is suggested that this happens
annually

That robust project management arrangements are
essential for HfL to perform to an acceptable standard.
This should include regular meetings of project
management teams (which should involve managers of
each strand of the project) as well as a steering group for
the whole HfL programme to monitor divergence from

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Response
There are a number of agreed
controls:
From next year (2020), there will
be a 10-year delivery plan
prepared by the Council, setting
out the requirements for new
homes and all added value
deliverables from HfL. An updated
Plan will be subject to council
approval each year.
The HFL Business Plan sets out
how HFL will support the council
delivery plan. The Business Plan
is reviewed by the Ownership and
Stewardship Panel and approved
annually by cabinet.
Oversight of the programme
delivered by HFL will also be part
of the quarterly reports to the
Cabinet.
This could be dealt with in two
ways –
1. By the council asking HfL to
benchmark progress with other
WOS or
2. the information on other WOS
mentioned in the O & S report in
June be provided once a year
with commentary from HfL.

Deadline

Owner

March 2020

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

RAG
rating

A

Page 87

Homes for
Lambeth Review

Recommendation / Action

HFL
Business
Plan (March
2020)

Sandra
Roebuck

A

Homes for Lambeth is currently
building informal links with similar
companies to share best practise
and learn from the experiences of
other companies.
An officer level Joint Approval
Board is being created which
meets monthly to oversee the
programme delivery at an
operational level. This is
supported by a set of processes
that cover projects through the

A

Item

Recommendation / Action
plans and approve corrective action. This should be
reported on annually

Homes for
Lambeth Review

That there should be more resident representation
(including both tenants and leaseholders) on the HfL
Board and that the rationale for council officers sitting on
the Board should be independently reviewed, with a view

Accepted

Accepted

Response
lifecycle from inception to
handover. The joint approval
board will make recommendations
on programme changes and
oversee corrective action should
there be programme slippage.
HfL has put in place appropriate
management and oversight
arrangements via both the Board
and team structure. HfL also
provide performance and
information reports into the
council structures such as;
Ownership and Stewardship
Panel, relevant Cabinet Member
Briefings, Management Board and
ad-hoc meetings with the senior
council officers.
There is a place for a resident
representative on the Ownership
and Stewardship Panel, although
currently no structure exists for
selecting that representative.
However, the Council and HfL are
looking at options for
strengthening the engagement of
residents and ward councillors
(including opposition councillors);
to include arrangements for
selecting a resident
representative to the Ownership
and Stewardship Panel. These
arrangements will be
implemented by the end of the
year. The Ownership and
Stewardship Panel is a sub-group
of Cabinet and it would not be
appropriate for a sub-group of
Cabinet to include opposition
members.
HFL’s board structure has been
agreed with the council who is the
sole shareholder. Residents and
the public are also represented

Deadline

Owner

Ongoing

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Dec 2019

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

RAG
rating

Page 88

Homes for
Lambeth Review

That the committee has concerns regarding the
independence of the Ownership and Stewardship Panel
as it currently operates, and recommends either that this
be changed to ensure residents and opposition councillors
are represented, or that a separate body be established
which satisfies this requirement, within six months

Accepted/
Rejected

A

R

Item

Recommendation / Action
to appointing independent advisors in their place if
necessary

Accepted/
Rejected
Rejected

Accepted

Homes for
Lambeth Review

That the committee notes the intention of HfL to “reduce
inequality through the creation of 50 apprenticeships/job
opportunities for local people through the lifecycle of the
programme” (para. 2.58) and requests that a particular
focus be placed on care leavers

Accepted

Homes for
Lambeth Review

That environmental impact assessments should be carried
out for each project including the anticipated impact on
carbon emissions or demolition and construction, in
relation to the Borough’s policy of becoming carbon
neutral by 2030. These should be kept up to date and
published, and reported on in the HfL annual report

via elected member of the board
of HFL Group.
There is also a space for a
resident member of the councils
Ownership and Stewardship
panel.
The Council and HfL are looking
at options for strengthening the
engagement of residents and
ward councillors. This will include
how HFL Homes residents can
engage with the board. Progress
will be reported upon in the HFL
Business Plan.
The early programme of council
rent homes will be utilised for
decants from the 6 regeneration
estates. As part of the council’s
commissioning role into the future
there will be an opportunity to
consider how to address other
housing needs within the
borough. A specific Social
inclusion workstream is being
developed as part of the HfL
Business Plan. It is currently
being scoped and will come
forward for approval in March
2020.
HFL will look at how this goal will
be met by working in partnership
with its contractors and suppliers.
This will form part of the Social
Inclusion workstream.

Deadline

Owner

HFL
Business
Plan (March
2020)

Paul
Simpson

Ongoing

Ongoing

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Paul
Simpson

RAG
rating

A

A

As required by planning policy,
we will carry out EIA on the six
estates to be rebuilt.
HFL issue Design Standards to
all their consultants as the
minimum standards and

A

Page 89

Homes for
Lambeth Review

That HfL should aim to support Looked After Children by
contributing to the supply of housing options including
semi-independent living accommodation, as well as
looking to provide suitable accommodation for foster
families where appropriate

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

Accepted

expectations. They require the
consultant and build teams to
comply with the following: 

- All homes must satisfy the
London Plan Policy on
Sustainable Design



- Developments should be
designed in accordance with the
London Plan Energy Hierarchy,
achieving the largest proportion
of carbon reductions through
design efficiencies (including
Fabric First) rather than carbon
offset to achieve zero carbon



-Take a Fabric First approach on
all new developments.



-Before choosing a heating
system consider future proofing in
terms of fuel choice and fuel
selection



-Determine the most suitable low
or zero carbon technology



- Achieve “Full Fabric Energy
Efficiency Standards (FEES) on
average, 39 KWh/m2/yr for
apartments
Health and well-being is a specific
work stream in the HfL Business
Plan – this is being scoped during
the Autumn and will come forward
for approval in March 2020.

Deadline

Owner

Ongoing

Paul
Simpson

HFL
Business
Plan (March
2020)

Paul
Simpson

RAG
rating

Page 90

Homes for
Lambeth Review

That HfL ensures comprehensive measures are put in
place to ensure the impacts on those living on estates
undergoing regeneration (particularly the most vulnerable
residents) are minimised, especially with regards to
physical and mental health. This should be regularly
monitored by the Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA)
process (noting that Lambeth includes Health as a specific

Response

A

Item

Homes for
Lambeth Review

Lambeth Borough
Plan Review

Lambeth Borough
Plan Review

characteristic in its EIA template), and reported on in the
HfL annual report
That the committee requests a further update on Homes
for Lambeth in the coming months, provisionally in
December 2019. This should include details of how the
company structure has evolved, how projects are
progressing and how HfL is performing against its KPIs
(including on social value initiatives such as
apprenticeships – see also rec 7)
That a greater focus is needed on supporting small
businesses in the borough to grow, especially in areas not
covered by Business Improvement Districts (BIDs), in
order to support the aspiration that prosperity be spread
throughout the borough. The committee notes that Cllr
Irfan Mohammed, in his role as the Council’s Business
Champion, is undertaking work in this area and requests
details of this, including how OSC Members may
contribute

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

That, in light of the current national political uncertainty,
the committee notes its concern regarding the potential
effects on the borough of a No Deal Brexit, particularly
with regards to employment, jobs and wages, and
requests further details on the work going on in the
organisation to prepare for such an eventuality
That the Borough Plan should include meaningful and
measurable KPIs for every outcome, presented in a
hierarchical way using a dashboard system. In
circumstances where a particular outcome is not deemed
easily measurable there should nevertheless be some
form of qualitative evaluation/commentary to evaluate
progress
Accepted

Response

This could be done effectively as
part of the approval process for
the 10-year Delivery Plan and the
HfL Business Plan. December is a
good provisional date for this.

The Borough Plan includes goals
relating to sustainable economic
growth in neighbourhoods
throughout the borough, not just
our town centres. The Plan
recognises the importance of
spreading prosperity and
opportunity across the borough.
The growth strategy (provisionally
April 2020) will set out in more
detail the approach we will take to
increasing sustainable economic
growth, including support for
businesses.
Chair agreed that no formal report
be requested due to the pace of
events but that relevant
information be circulated to
Members
Work is in progress to develop a
new visualisation of the current
Key Performance Indicators to
track the delivery of goals in the
2019/20 Borough Plan. A
prototype is to be used as part of
the Quarter 2 Performance &
Budget report to Cabinet. The
visualisation enables the user to
view the overall performance of
the Borough Plan, before drilling
down further to see performance
against pillars, goals and then
individual KPIs. Work to review
and revise the KPIs that track the

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

HFL
Business
Plan (March
2020)

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A

A
April 2020

Chloe
Bernard
Grahame

Completed

Gary O’Key

Page 91

Lambeth Borough
Plan Review

Recommendation / Action

G

A

April 2020

Tim
Weetman

Item

Lambeth Borough
Plan Review

That greater clarity is needed in the refreshed Borough
Plan regarding which strategies are reported on where, as
well as signposting to lower level KPIs. It is suggested a
format similar to that used for the Risk Management
reports received by Corporate Committee may be
appropriate for this

That the committee notes Council’s motion of 23 January
2019 (as amended) regarding declaring a climate change
emergency and believes that KPIs to support these
aspirations should be developed and tracked for those
departments involved in delivering outcomes (including
contractors)

Lambeth Borough
Plan Review

That an update be requested from the Deputy Leader of
the Council (Environment and Clean Air) on potential
plans for a Citizens’ Assembly to support the Council
motion referred to in (V) above, including timescales

OSC Work
Programme

That the decision made by the previous committee on 14
March regarding the 3 October meeting provisionally
being themed around contracts (specifically on Housing
and Environment) be confirmed
That an item on preparedness for a No Deal Brexit be
considered to come to the committee on 3 October,
depending on national developments in the intervening
period

OSC Work
Programme

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response
achievement of the goals in the
Borough Plan is happening in
tandem and will be concluded in
readiness for reporting in
2020/21.
The Strategy & Communications
Team have produced a list of
strategies that inform the Borough
Plan. Work to review and revise
the KPIs that track the
achievement of the goals in the
Borough Plan will be concluded in
readiness for reporting in
2020/21. Lower level priority KPIs
can be found as part of the
quarterly Budget & Performance
report.
The identification of KPIs
concerned with climate change
will be included in broader work to
revise the Borough Plan KPIs,
where they align with Borough
Plan goals. In addition, a climate
change programme is in the
process of being initiated, led by
Sustainable Growth &
Opportunity. Appropriate KPIs
will be devised as part of this
programme.
The requested information is
contained within the report
Lambeth’s Response to the
Climate Crisis

Meeting moved to 17 September.
Agenda focused on contracts and
procurement
(housing/environment)
Chair agreed that no formal report
be requested due to the pace of
events but that relevant

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

A

April 2020

April 2020

Tim
Weetman

Tim
Weetman

A

Completed

Nick
McCoy

G

Completed

Gary O’Key

G

Completed

Gary O’Key

G

Page 92

Lambeth Borough
Plan Review

Recommendation / Action

Item

OSC Work
Programme

Recommendation / Action

That the committee considers requesting an update report
on Homes for Lambeth at the December meeting (see
also item 4, rec 10)

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
information be circulated to
Members
Discussions ongoing with officers
as to timing of HfL follow up report
– provisionally March 2020

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

March 2020

Gary O’Key

A

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

22 July 2019

Sam Bailey

G

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Fiona
Connolly

G

TBC

Fiona
Connolly

A

N/A

Fiona
Connolly

G

10 July 2019: Health & Adult Social Care
Item
Procurement of
Pathology
Services

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

That the concerns raised about the procurement of
Pathology Services in South East London be referred to
the Our Healthier South East London Joint Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Accepted

This item was considered as a
specific item at the JOSC. The
Vice Chair with responsibility for
health made representations in
line with those made at OSC.

That the objectives and principles of Lambeth Together,
including the neighbourhood based approach to care and
its commitment to reduce health inequalities and improve
the outcomes for residents at every stage of need, are
endorsed.

Accepted

N/A

Lambeth
Together Update

That members are kept informed of the models to be used
in the development of the neighbourhood based care
approach; with a focus on how residents and councillors
can use local knowledge to inform developments including
the different health and social care models to be used.

Accepted

Lambeth
Together Update

That long term quality data, including performance
indicators with appropriate baselines, is gathered on
outcomes for service users to evidence interventions that
work.

Accepted

Lambeth
Together Update

That Lambeth Together keep the effectiveness of the
oversight of patient care under review.

Accepted

In the remainder of 2019-20 a
number of neighbourhood-based
test and learns will be developed
and relevant ward members will
be engaged in those
developments. The Lambeth
Health and Wellbeing
Collaborative has been
established to lead on that work.
An Outcomes Development
Group has been tasked with
ensuring that short, medium and
long-term measures against
which the programme and its
constituent parts can be
measured are put in place.
Improved experience of care for
patients is one of the quadruple
aims of Lambeth Together.
Healthwatch Lambeth ensures

Page 93

Lambeth
Together Update

Recommendation / Action

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

That Budget performance for Lambeth Together be
reported to Scrutiny on a regular basis.

Accepted

Lambeth
Together Update

That Lambeth Together continue to identify, and seek to
remove, the barriers that black and other communities
face in accessing appropriate healthcare and support.

Accepted

Lambeth
Together Update

That ways of ensuring service users have greater control
over their own care are implemented and monitored
through user feedback in order to avoid budget shunts in
the integrated health and care system.

Accepted

Lambeth Adult
Social Care
Assurance Report

That more information is gathered on informal carers, their
needs and the risks they face to ensure that they are
better supported in their role.

Accepted

Lambeth Adult
Social Care
Assurance Report

That an update be provided to members on Deprivation of
Liberty Safeguards Legal Challenges.

Accepted

local people’s voices count when
it comes to shaping and improving
local health and care services and
they are a key part of the
governance of Lambeth Together
Annual OSC budget meeting took
place on 13 November
An equalities impact assessment
for Lambeth Together is under
development. The objective of
Lambeth Together is to improve
health and wellbeing and reduce
inequality for people in Lambeth
and the programme will continue
to work with its partners, including
Black Thrive, to address the
health inequalities of Lambeth’s
black communities.
Careful financial planning and
monitoring will be undertaken to
ensure that budget shunts do not
take place. The purpose of an
integrated care system, and
Lambeth’s alliancing approach,
are designed to reduce the risk of
budget shunts as all elements of
the health and care system will be
working towards a collective set of
outcomes.
We have developed a Carers
passport. Carers Passport
schemes offer a means to identify
a far greater number of carers,
and most crucially connect them
to the information and support
that can improve their quality of
life. Info circulated to Members
02/09/19.
This will form part of the Risk
report that will go to Corporate
committee in December. Audit
report action log circulated to
Members 02/09/19.

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Ongoing

Fiona
Connolly

A

Nov 2019
(EIA)

Fiona
Connolly

A

Ongoing

Fiona
Connolly

A

Complete

Richard
Outram

G

Completed

Richard
Outram

G

Page 94

Lambeth
Together Update

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Lambeth Adult
Social Care
Assurance Report

That the Adult Social Care team work with the Housing
Team to seek ways to reduce delays in Occupational
Therapy assessments, processing Disabled Facilities
Grant applications and implementing the works required
as a result of a successful application.
That the Adult Social Care team work with the Housing
Team to incentivise landlords in the Private Rented Sector
to give permission for adaptations to their properties.
That the Adult Social Care work team ensure that
safeguarding is a Lambeth priority, and provide members
with an update on safeguarding initiatives and what is
being done to ensure safe care, including for Council
partners.

Lambeth Adult
Social Care
Assurance Report
Lambeth Adult
Social Care
Assurance Report

That an update is provided to members on home care
provider contracts, including their value for money and
service user satisfaction levels.
That detailed information is shared with the Committee
regarding the Lambeth Together Outcomes.

Lambeth Annual
Public Health
Report
Lambeth Annual
Public Health
Report

That the neighbourhood based care approach is
endorsed.

Lambeth Annual
Public Health
Report

That the Public Health team seek to work with donors in
order to identify funding opportunities for future projects to
identify and reduce health inequalities within Lambeth’s
population.

The importance of collecting neighbourhood level data is
recognised. Further information should be circulated by
the Public Health team to members on how they can help
develop the model.

Accepted

Accepted
in part

Response
A Joint Disabled Facilities Board
has been established between
ASC, Housing and CSC, and
Finance to work on the pathway.
First meeting in Aug 2019.
This is not possible under current
DFG rules. This will be
considered if rules change
The Annual Safeguarding Report
is due to be published. This will
be presented by the independent
Chair to Corporate Committee in
December and will be made
available to the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee at the earliest
opportunity
Info circulated to Members
02/09/19.

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Completed
Richard
Outram

G

Completed

Richard
Outram

G

Completed

Richard
Outram

G

Completed

Liz Clegg

G

Accepted

This is currently being worked on
and is a complex and evolving
piece of work across multiple
partners. We will share this work
with the committee at the earliest
opportunity. Suggested update in
January 2020.

Jan 2020

Richard
Outram

A

Accepted

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Will depend
on specific
areas of work

Ruth Hutt

TBC

Ruth Hutt

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Where feasible the Public Health
team will work with
commissioners and providers to
co-produce neighbourhood level
data for specific areas of work
(e.g. when undertraining a needs
assessment or area profile).
Timescales will depend on
specific work areas and these can
be shared with members.
As part of the Health in all Policies
approach the Public Health team
has started to engage a range of
partners around the social
determinants of health. The

A

A

Page 95

Lambeth Adult
Social Care
Assurance Report
Lambeth Adult
Social Care
Assurance Report

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Lambeth Annual
Public Health
Report

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

That the Public Health team carry out engagement work
with Housing Associations, and the Private Rented Sector,
in the Borough in order to involve them in future public
health initiatives.

process of engaging with Housing
Associations commenced with the
invitation to participate in a
Homelessness and Health
stakeholder workshop in July
2019. Effective mechanisms for
further engagement of Housing
Associations, and the Private
Rented Sector will continue to be
identified with colleagues from
across the local authority and
health.
Housing Director or delegate
nominated as member of
Lambeth Together Strategic
Leadership group. Public Health
working with Homes for Lambeth
to develop approaches which
consider health impacts in regen
and future developments.
Associate Director for Housing to
join Public Health management
team to make links between
health and housing strategy.
Specific engagement work will be
in relation to wider Lambeth
Together engagement and link to
specific themes for local
communities and residents, using
RSLs and TMAs as a way to
engage in with residents.

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

Complete

Ruth Hutt

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

December
2019

Darren
Levy / Neil
Euesden

A

G

17 September 2019: Contracts and Procurement
Item

Recommendation / Action

Design of
Housing Services
After 2020

That the committee endorses the broad approach to the
new housing contracts as set out in the papers, subject to
the introduction of robust mechanisms to drive value for
money and quality. This includes break clauses, financial

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

Response
The contract documents are being
drafted to feature all of these
mechanisms, including: default
mechanism; no-fault termination

Page 96

Accepted

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

penalties (e.g. for missed appointments) and linking profit
to performance

That the clarity and simplicity of communications needs to
be improved, especially in relation to Section 20 notices.
This should include going above and beyond legislative
requirements

Accepted

Design of
Housing Services
After 2020

Communications to residents about processes to improve
services need to be outcome focussed and include details
of the process, resident involvement, time frame, contract
types (to achieve flexibility and high quality) and
communication

Accepted

Design of
Housing Services
After 2020

That the committee requests a report on lessons learned
from the current contract term, particularly in relation to
responsive repairs, including how it is proposed these
lessons will be addressed in the new contract design

Accepted

Design of
Housing Services
After 2020

That efforts should be redoubled to broaden engagement
and increase the diversity of residents involved,
particularly on the Resident Procurement Panel (RPP) in
order to widen perspectives and reduce the burden on
existing RPP members. This should include proactive
follow up with those residents who have expressed an
interest but have not yet attended a meeting

Accepted in
Part

provisions; profit linked KPIs;
compensation – including
liquidated damages.
A resident engagement strategy
has been produced and now
needs to be implemented in full.
Following the OCS meeting,
Members are now briefed at
weekly meetings and fortnightly
member updates are issued
setting out progress. Section 20
notices are now reviewed by
Lambeth’s communications team
to check they are drafted in plain
language and avoid technical
jargon where possible.
Detailed timetables have now
been produced to achieve the
required outcomes and shared
with residents. Strategic resident
meeting and workshops are set
out in the timetable. A ‘golden’
thread is being developed so
there is a joined up resident
journey from developing
standards and methodology in
workshops, evaluating contractor
proposals for delivering the
standards/methodology, and
finally monitoring the outcome of
those same standards in the
service delivery stages.
Request to extend the suggested
date to January 2019 (1 month
extension) as there is some peer
learning still being applied to the
design of the DLO.
A recent campaign has increased
membership and diversity (tenure
and protected characteristics) but
members’ extra-panel
commitments have precluded
many from periodically attending
the strategic tier meetings – which

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

January
2020

Darren
Levy / Neil
Euesden

A

December
2019

Darren
Levy / Neil
Euesden

A

January
2020

Darren
Levy / Neil
Euesden

A

Dec 2019

Darren
Levy / Neil
Euesden

A

Page 97

Design of
Housing Services
After 2020

Response

Item

Design of
Housing Services
After 2020

Recommendation / Action

That information be requested regarding the diversity of
current engagement mechanisms (including
demographics and tenure) and how this compares to the
borough’s population

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

That the committee believes a strong contract
management function is essential to deliver improved
outcomes and drive value over time, and suggests that
consideration be given to establishing a centralised team
of specialists to carry this out

Accepted

Design of
Housing Services
After 2020

That further information be requested regarding how the
new service design will support the Council’s climate
change ambitions and contribute to the Council’s carbon
neutrality target, particularly in relation to repairs and
maintenance

Accepted

Design of
Housing Services
After 2020

That information be requested on the housing service
restructure and how this will support and complement the
new contractual arrangements while ensuring staff morale
is not adversely affected

Accepted

has retained a lot of emphasis on
a strategic cohort of attendees.
The new members are however
consulted on an ad-hoc basis and
invited to attend workshops
through a tiered engagement
model.
This information is being put
together and will be reported.

The council has already created a
centralised team that will provide
contract scrutiny, cost
management and governance
oversight across all of the newly
procured contracts – as well as
the proposed DLO. There are a
number of vacant roles in the
centralised team that could take 4
– 5 months to fill – hence the
request to extend the deadline.
This will however still see the
roles filled ahead of the new
contracts and DLO commencing.
Extension requested because
although resident services is
setting out minimum carbon
reduction requirements in its
tender invites and method
statements, bidding contractors
are being tasked with presenting
further carbon reduction solutions
in their method statements – and
these solutions will not be fully
known and form contractual
obligations before April 2020.
The restructure will not be fully
developed until April 2020 and
there are some services still being
designed that may require further
tweaks to the clienting structures.
Management is working with staff
on how best to client the new

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Nov 2019

Darren
Levy / Neil
Euesden

A

April 2020

Darren
Levy / Neil
Euesden

A

April 2020

Darren
Levy / Neil
Euesden

A

April 2020

Darren
Levy / Neil
Euesden

A

Page 98

Design of
Housing Services
After 2020

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

That the committee seeks assurance that flexibility and
responsiveness in relation to estate cleansing will be
maintained once such services are rolled into the broader
waste contract

Accepted

Contract
Management:
Waste & Street
Cleansing

That action be taken to improve recycling rates on
estates. This should include increased publicity which
should focus on clarity and simplicity and should target
landlords as well as residents. The committee requests a
report back on estate recycling performance within 12
months

Accepted

Contract
Management:
Waste & Street
Cleansing

That the information provided directly to residents and on
the Council’s website regarding reuse and recycling
options (including bulky waste) be significantly enhanced
as soon as practicable

Contract
Management:
Waste & Street
Cleansing

That the committee supports efforts to leverage maximum
social value from the new waste contract and requests
further details of agreed social value measures once the
contract is awarded

Accepted

Accepted

delivery arrangements and no
changes are being made without
consultation. Training will also be
provided where necessary.
The specification is now clear on
the specific services and areas to
be covered by the new waste and
cleansing contract. It incorporates
flexible opportunities to develop
partnership working and coordination with other service
providers on estates.
Trials are currently being
delivered on estates in advance of
the commencement of the new
contract and will continue as a
means of developing optimum
recycling opportunities. The
specification provides for
improved conditions of bin stores
and containers in line with best
practice
As part of our digital strategy and
information requirements moving
forward, we will be developing
more effective and efficient sign
posting mechanisms to cover a
wide range or community, third
sector and business initiatives to
promote reuse and recycling. This
has commenced and will be
ongoing and continuously under
review
The specification has been
developed to ensure enhance
social value is delivered through
the contract. This is reflected in a
comprehensive approach to
evaluating social value proposals
through the Evaluation
Framework

Deadline

Sept 2020

Nov 2019

September
2020

Owner

RAG
rating

Doug Perry
/ Cormac
Stokes

A

Doug Perry
/ Cormac
Stokes

A

Doug Perry
/ Cormac
Stokes

A

Doug Perry
/ Cormac
Stokes

Page 99

Contract
Management:
Waste & Street
Cleansing

Response

A

13 November 2019: Budget
Item

Financial
Planning Report
2019/20 to
2023/24

Financial
Planning Report
2019/20 to
2023/24

That budget and expenditure comparisons with other
councils in Lambeth’s CIPFA comparator group should be
routinely included in future budget reports
To request further information on the London business
rates pooling arrangements for 2020/21 with a particular
focus on expected benefits or drawbacks for Lambeth
To request details of the forthcoming business rates
revaluation and its effects for Lambeth, including expected
mitigation, as soon as this information becomes available
That all future budget reports should include a detailed
analysis of the financial implications of the Council’s
climate emergency response
That further detail be provided to the committee regarding
the modelling work that has been done to assess options
for the introduction of a voluntary contribution from
residents. This should include information on forecast
value, costs and governance arrangements as well as
maintenance and distribution of the funds
That the committee continues to be concerned at the
pressures on adult social care and the potential effects of
increased fees and charges on service users, and
requests a future update on the extent to which the
service is delivering positive outcomes and value for
money in the face of these pressures

Accepted/
Rejected

Response
Recommendation to be formally
submitted to Feb Cabinet budget
as appendix to budget report
Recommendation to be formally
submitted to Feb Cabinet budget
as appendix to budget report
Recommendation to be formally
submitted to Feb Cabinet budget
as appendix to budget report
Recommendation to be formally
submitted to Feb Cabinet budget
as appendix to budget report
Recommendation to be formally
submitted to Feb Cabinet budget
as appendix to budget report

Recommendation to be formally
submitted to Feb Cabinet budget
as appendix to budget report

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Feb 2020

Christina
Thompson

A

Feb 2020

Christina
Thompson

A

Feb 2020

Christina
Thompson

A

Feb 2020

Christina
Thompson

A

Feb 2020

Christina
Thompson

A

Feb 2020

Christina
Thompson /
Fiona
Connolly

A

Page 100

Financial
Planning Report
2019/20 to
2023/24
Financial
Planning Report
2019/20 to
2023/24
Financial
Planning Report
2019/20 to
2023/24
Financial
Planning Report
2019/20 to
2023/24

Recommendation / Action

Item

Draft Sustainable
Growth and
Inclusive
Opportunity
Strategy
Draft Sustainable
Growth and
Inclusive
Opportunity
Strategy

That further details regarding the impact of the 1%
increase in the Public Works Loan Board interest rate on
the Council’s capital programme be provided to the
committee
That the committee notes the reliance on income
generation to meet the bulk of the savings set out and
wishes to receive future updates on how these proposals
are progressing against the stated targets
That greater transparency and more effective
communication is required regarding the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

Accepted/
Rejected

Response
Recommendation to be formally
submitted to Feb Cabinet budget
as appendix to budget report
Recommendation to be formally
submitted to Feb Cabinet budget
as appendix to budget report

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Feb 2020

Christina
Thompson

A

Feb 2020

Christina
Thompson

A

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

That a clear set of criteria is needed regarding how CIL is
allocated, with a particular focus on addressing identified
need across the borough rather than just in the area(s) in
which development takes place

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

That more consultation with residents, businesses and
ward councillors is required to develop the strategy, with
measurable targets and outcomes developed with
stakeholders

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

That terms such as “affordable housing” need to be
clearly defined in the strategy and all public documents

That thorough environmental impact assessments be
carried out for all individual development projects and
decisions made, particularly in relation to how they will
impact the Council’s response to the declaration of a
climate emergency, and that this be referenced in the
strategy
That comparative data be referenced in the strategy
wherever possible. This should include national
employment figures and data on the economically inactive

That the strategy should have a clearer focus on
addressing disparities experienced by the borough’s BME,
Portuguese, disabled and economically inactive
communities

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Page 101

Financial
Planning Report
2019/20 to
2023/24
Financial
Planning Report
2019/20 to
2023/24
Draft Sustainable
Growth and
Inclusive
Opportunity
Strategy
Draft Sustainable
Growth and
Inclusive
Opportunity
Strategy
Draft Sustainable
Growth and
Inclusive
Opportunity
Strategy
Draft Sustainable
Growth and
Inclusive
Opportunity
Strategy
Draft Sustainable
Growth and
Inclusive
Opportunity
Strategy

Recommendation / Action

Item

Recommendation / Action

Draft Sustainable
Growth and
Inclusive
Opportunity
Strategy

That there needs to be a more coherent strategy aimed at
supporting small businesses, particularly those who are
not part of Business Improvement Districts (e.g. because
of geography). This should include identifying priority
needs and best practice, and disseminating the latter
across the borough
That lessons learned reports be compiled for all major
projects and that identified lessons be applied to future
schemes

Draft Sustainable
Growth and
Inclusive
Opportunity
Strategy
Events Scrutiny
Commission Draft
Report

Accepted/
Rejected

Owner

RAG
rating

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller
After careful consideration the
commission chair chose not to
make the suggested
amendments. It was considered
that officers should balance the
funds available to meet all the
recommendations without the
need for stipulating a ring-fencing
requirement, while changing the
wording on recs 1 and 3 as
suggested would risk creating a
two tier system which may
weaken commitment to other
recommendations by implication.
However, recs 1 and 3 have been
flagged as a particular priority.

Jan 2020

Gary O’Key

G

Jan 2020

Raj Mistry

G

The commission report was
approved by Cabinet on 13.01.20.
Briefing note circulated to
members
Accepted

Page 102

To approve the report for presentation to Cabinet subject
to consideration of the following comments:
The potential for ring-fencing funds for
accessibility improvements to parks and open
spaces
The possibility of strengthening
recommendations 1 and 3 to say “must”
rather than “should”

That a briefing note be requested from officers on the
number of people killed and seriously injured (KSI) on
Lambeth’s roads, with data including KSI levels, trends
and benchmarking with other boroughs, and what is being
done (or is planned) to tackle this

Deadline

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Accepted

OSC Work
Programme

Response

Page 103

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Reconfiguration of Lambeth Hospital Mental Health In-patient Services
Terms of reference
The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) is constituted in accordance
with the Local Authority Public Health, Health & Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny
Regulations 2013 (the “Regulations”) and Department of Health Guidance to respond to a
substantial reconfiguration proposal covering more than one local authority area.
The JHOSC will scrutinise the proposal from Lambeth Clinical Commissioning Group and
their provider South London and Maudsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM), to
reconfigure mental health inpatient services for Lambeth, by transferring in-patient services
(one psychiatric intensive care unit (PICU) and four acute wards) currently located in
Lambeth Hospital to a new facility on the Maudsley Hospital site.
The JHOSC will consider the impact of proposed future service provision on the boroughs
of Southwark and Lambeth and seek assurance that the proposed changes will be in the
best interests of the local health service.
The relevant commissioners for this proposal are Lambeth and Southwark Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and the social care commissioners from both local
authorities.
Context
The Lambeth Living Well Network Alliance are undertaking a broad scheme of service
changes that will support the development of community services within Lambeth and
support the transition away from acute to community based care.
This process is already underway with development of new and refurbished Living Well
Centres in their late stages of approval.
Together with commissioners SLaM are therefore now exploring two options for the longterm future of acute inpatient services which currently reside on the Lambeth Hospital site:


Option 1: Stay as we are (do nothing).



Option 2: Transfer acute in-patient services to a new facility on the Maudsley
Hospital site.

These options for consultation result from the evaluation of a long list of options including
reprovision of the beds on the Lambeth Hospital site but represent those that are identified
as being appropriate and achievable.

Page 104

The Joint Committee’s terms of reference are:
1.

Subject to paragraph 2 below, to undertake all the functions of a statutory Joint
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the Regulations and
Department of Health Guidance in relation to the proposal to reconfigure mental
health inpatient services for Lambeth, which are currently located at Lambeth
Hospital. This includes, but is not limited to the following:

2.

(a)

To consider and respond to the proposals from SLaM to reconfigure mental
health inpatient services for Lambeth by transferring in-patient services
currently located in Lambeth Hospital to a new facility on the Maudsley
Hospital site;

(b)

To scrutinise the commissioners of the SLaM proposal and to seek assurance
that the proposals for alternative service delivery are supported and that
partnership arrangements between health & social care and across the
boroughs are adequate;

(c)

To scrutinise any consultation process.

The terms of reference do not include the power to make a report to the Secretary of
State (under regulation 23(9) of the Regulations) in relation to the proposal from
Commissioners and SLaM, for Lambeth and Southwark Councils. However, any
individual authority may make a specific delegation to the JHOSC in relation to their
own power to make such a report on their behalf. The JHOSC will undertake to go
through all the necessary steps needed to enable either collective or individual
councils to exercise their power to refer to the Secretary of State

Membership
Membership of the Joint Committee will be three nominated Members from each of the
following local authorities:



London Borough of Lambeth;
London Borough of Southwark.

Members of the Joint Committee must not be an Executive Member of their authority.
Procedures
Chair and Vice-Chair
1.

The Joint Committee will appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair at its first meeting. The
Chair and Vice-Chair should be members of different participating authorities.

Substitutions
2.

Substitutes may attend Joint Committee meetings in lieu of nominated members.
Continuity of attendance throughout the review is strongly encouraged, however.

Page 105

3.

It will be the responsibility of individual committee members and their local
authorities to arrange substitutions and to ensure that the lead authority is informed
of any changes prior to the meeting.

4.

Where a substitute is attending the meeting, it will be the responsibility of the
nominated member to brief them in advance of the meeting

Quorum
5.

The quorum of the meeting of the Joint Committee will be 3 members; with at least
one member from each borough present.

Voting
6.

It is hoped that the Joint Committee will be able to reach its decisions by consensus.
However, in the event that a vote is required each member present will have one
vote. In the event of there being an equality of votes, the Chair of the meeting will
have the casting vote.

Reporting
7.

On completion of the scrutiny review by the Joint Committee, it shall produce a
single final report, or set of recommendations, reflecting the views of both of the local
authorities involved.

8.

The JHOSC may ask Commissioners and / or SLaM to respond to the report
recommendations within 28 days, or over a longer period.

Meetings
9.

Meetings of the Joint Committee will normally be held in public and will take place at
venues within South London. The normal access to information provisions applying
to meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny committees will apply. However, there
may be occasions on which the Joint Committee may need to make visits outside of
the formal Committee meeting setting.

10.

Meetings shall last for up to two hours from the time the meeting is due to
commence. The Joint Committee may resolve, by a simple majority before the expiry
of two hours from the start of the meeting, to continue the meeting for a maximum
further period of up to 30 minutes.

Local Overview and Scrutiny Committees
10.

The Joint Committee will encourage its Members to inform their local overview and
scrutiny committees of the work of the Joint Committee.

11.

The Joint Committee will invite its Members to represent to the Joint Committee the
views of their local overview and scrutiny committees on the Lambeth Hospital
redevelopment proposal and the Joint Committee’s work.

Page 106

Communication
12.

The Joint Committee will establish clear lines of communication between itself, the
CCG, SLaM and local authorities. Lambeth Council shall be the lead authority and all
formal correspondence between the Joint Committee, local authorities and the NHS
on this matter will be administered by (Christian Scade , Lambeth Council) or (other)
until such officer is appointed.

Representations
13.

The Joint Committee will identify and invite witnesses to address the committee,
invite comments from interested parties and take into account information from all
the local Healthwatch organisations. It may undertake further consultation with a
range of stakeholders.

Support
14.

Administrative and research support will be provided by the scrutiny teams of the two
boroughs working together.

Assumptions
15.

The Joint Committee will be based on the following assumptions:
(a)

That the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee is constituted to respond to Lambeth
CCG and SLaM on the reconfiguration of mental health inpatient services for
Lambeth proposal.

(b)

The CCG and SLaM will permit the Joint Health Scrutiny Committee access to
the outcome of any public consultation.

